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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Members of the Board of Commissioners 
County of Iron, Michigan 
Crystal Falls, Michigan 49920 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
County of Iron, Michigan, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the County oflron, Michigan's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management'.5 Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is re:.ponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial :.tatements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial 
statements of the Iron County Medical Care Facility, which represents 50 percent, 46 percent, and 70 percent, respectively, of 
the assets, net position, and revenues of the discretely presented component uni IS. Those financial statement:, were audited by 
another auditor whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amount,; included for Iron 
County Medical Care Facility, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. The financial statements of Iron County Medical Care Facility were not audited in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overaU presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presenied component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fond information of the 
County oflron, Michigan, as of December 31, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, 
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
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Other Matter.~ 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and 
analysis, budgetary comparison infonnation, the schedule of net pension liability and related ratios for the retirement system, 
the schedule of employer contributions for the retirement system, and the schedule of funding progress for other 
postemployment benefits as listed in the Table of Contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
infonnation, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the infonnation and comparing the information 
for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other lnformation 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
County of Iron, Michigan's basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund financiaJ statements and continuing 
disclosure filing are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Unifonn Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements/or Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility 
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the 
report of the other auditors, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The continuing disclosure filing has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 15, 2017, on our 
consideration of the County of Iron, Michigan's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is 
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County of Iron, Michigan's 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

June 15, 2017 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

Our discussion and analysis of Iron County's financial performance provides an overview of the 
Cowity's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2016. Please read it in conjunction 
with the Cowity's financial statements, which begin on page 12. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Net position for the County was reported at $2,955,072 for 2016 and was $2,261,549 for 
2015, resulting in an increase of $693,523. For 2016, net position for our business-type 
activities was $3,210,299 while net position (deficit) in our governmental activities was 
($255,227). 

The County's expenses for 2016 totaled $8,403,824, revenues totaled $9,097,347 resulting in 
an increase in net position in the amount of $693,523. 

In the County's business type activities, total revenues were $420,789, or 4.4% of total 
revenue, expenses totaled $190,618, or 2.2% of total expenses, and net transfers were 
($40,000). This provides excess expense over revenue of $32,546. 

The General Fund reported a decrease in fwid balance of $67,873 in 2016 and an increase of 
$47,341 in 2015, representing a change in fund balance of-2.9% and +2.1 %, respectively. 
This was after revenues of$5,560,852 compared to expenditures of$5,628,725 in 2016, and 
revenues of$6,205,32lcompared to expenditures of $6,157,980 in 2015. 

USING THIS REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and 
Statement of Activities (on pages 12, 13 and 14) provide information about the activities of the 
County as a whole and present a longer term view of the County's finances. Fwid financial 
statements start on page 15. For governmental funds, these statements tell how services were 
financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements 
also report the County's operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements by 
providing information about the County's most significant funds. The remaining statement provides 
financial information about activities for which the County acts solely as a trustee or agent for the 
benefit of those outside of government. 
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Reporting the County as a WhoJe 

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 

Our analysis of the County as a whole begins on page 6. One of the most important questions asked 
about the County's finances; "Is the County as a whole better off or in worse condition as a result of 
the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report 
information about the County as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this 
question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, 
which is similar to the accounting used by most private sector companies. All of the current year's 
revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. These two 
statements report the County's net position and changes in them. You can think of the County's net 
position - the difference between assets and liabilities- as one way to measure the County's :financial 
health, or.financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the County's net position are one 
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider 
other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the County's property tax base to assess the 
overall financial health of the County. 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the County into two 
categories of activities: 

Governmental activities - Most of the County's basic services are reported here including 
public safety, judicial system, health and welfare, parks and recreation and general 
administration. Property taxes, state and federal grant funds, and charges for services make 
up the majority of revenue for these activities. 

Business~type activities - The County charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most 
of the costs of certain services it provides. The Construction Code and the collection of 
delinquent property taxes primarily make up these activities. 

The County also presents three legally separate component units; County Road Commission, District 
Health Department and Medical Care Facility, which are reported separately from the financial 
information of the County. A separate financial statement is available for the component units at 
their administrative offices. 
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Reporting the County's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

Our analysis of the CoW1ty's Major Funds begins on page 8. The fund financial statements begin on 
page 15 and provide detailed information on the most significant funds - not the County as a whole. 
Some funds are required to be established by State law, and by bond covenants. However, the 
County Board of Commissioners establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money 
for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal requirements for certain taxes, grants, and 
other money. The County's two kinds of funds - governmental and proprietary - use different 
accounting methods. 

Governmental funds - Most of the County's services are reported in governmental funds 
which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances that are left at 
year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting 
method called modified accrual accoW1ting, which measures cash and all other financial 
assets that can be readily converted into cash. The governmental fund statements provide a 
detailed short-term view of the CoWlty's general government operations and the basic 
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you to determine whether there 
are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance County's 
program. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities 
(reported in the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities) and governmental 
funds in a reconciliation which follows the fund financial statements. 

Proprietary funds - When the CoW1ty charges customers for the services it provides -
whether to outside customers or to other units of the CoW1ty - these services are generally 
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all 
activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. In 
fact, the County's enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) are the same as the 
business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements, but provide more 
detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds. 

The County as a Trustee 

The County is the trustee, orfiducia,y, for tax receipts and other collections, which are collected for 
other agencies and held for a periodic payment to those agencies. The County's fiduciary activities 
are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position on page 24. We exclude these funds 
from the County's other financial statements because the County cannot use these assets to finance 
its operations. The County is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used 
for their intended purpose. 
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The County as a Whole 

The County's combined net position increased by $693,523. 

Assets: 
Current and other assets 
Capital assets (net) 

Total Assets 

Deferred outflows of resources 

Liabilities: 
Long-term debt outstanding 
Other liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Unavailable revenue 
Taxes levied for a subsequent period 

Total Deferred Inflows 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted position: 

Expendable 

Unrestricted 
Total Net position 

Table 1 
Net Position 

Governmental Activities 

2016 

$ 6,260,891 

$ 

$ 

4,371,621 
10,632,512 

587,038 

5,822,000 
3,577,879 
9,399,879 

32,210 
2,042,688 
2,074,898 

2,442,912 

763,993 

(3,462,132) 
$ (255,227) 

2015 

$ 6,126,701 

$ 

$ 

4,443,693 
10,570,394 

418,671 

6,428,000 
3,261,042 
9,689,042 

39,798 
2,018,804 
2,058,602 

2,327,504 

664,840 
(3,750,923) 

$ (758,579) 

Business-Type Activities 

2016 2015 

$3,304,946 
12,637 

3,317,583 

$ 

$ 
107,284 
l07,284 

12,637 

3,197,662 
$3,210,299 

$3,122,569 
12,624 

3,135,193 

$ 

$ 
115,065 
115,065 

12,624 

3,007,504 
$3,020,128 

Net Position of the County's governmental activities stood at a deficit of ($255,227). Unrestricted 
net position (deficit), the part of net position that could be used to finance the day-to-day operations 
without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements 
stood at ($3,462,132). 

Net Position in our business-type activities stood at $3,210,299. Unrestricted net position for our 
business-type activities was $3,197,662. 
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Table 2 
Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

2016 2015 2016 2015 
Revenues: 

Program Revenues: 

Charges for services $ 1,407,264 $ 1,451,024 $ 413,335 $ 399,477 
Operating grants 1,100,194 1,362,178 
Capital grants 

General Revenues: 
Property taxes 5,262,I09 4,985,857 
Unrestricted investment eamings 6,844 6,970 7,454 4,926 

Other 900,147 949,621 
Total Revenues 8,676,558 8,755,650 420,789 404,403 

Program Expenses: 

LegisJative 171,124 276,300 

Judicial system 1,019,067 975,586 

General govemment 2,239,932 2,202,027 

Public safety 2,634,005 2,643,215 
Health and welfare 717,708 619,393 
Culture and recreation 610,854 575,104 

Highway and transportation 9,798 9,971 
Community development 11,520 20 
Other 576,491 508,008 
Interest on long-tenn debt 222,707 240,863 
Delinquent tax revolving 86,633 80,787 
Building inspection 103,985 101,600 

Total Expenses 8,213,206 8,050,487 190,618 182,387 
Excess (deficiency) before 

transfers and contributions 463,352 705,163 230,171 222,016 

Transfers 40,000 158,271 (40,000) (458,271) 

Increase {decrease) in net position 503,352 863,434 190,171 (236,255} 

Net position-beginning of year 

as previously stated (758,579) 568,953 3,020,128 3,256,383 
Prior period adjustment (2,190,966) 
Net positition (deficit) - beginning 

of year - as restated (758,579) (1,622,013) 3,020,128 3,256,383 

Net position-ending $ (255,227) $ (758,579) $ 3,210,299 $ 3,020,128 
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Governmental Activities 

Revenues for the County's governmental activities totaled $8,676,558, while expenses were 
$8,213,206. The excess ofrevenue over expenses was $463,352 before transfers. 

Table three below reflects the cost of each of the County's five largest activities; General 
government, public safety, judicial system, cultural and recreation, and health and welfare, - as well 
as each program's net cost (tota) cost less revenues generated by the activities). The net cost shows 
the financial burden that each function placed on the taxpayers. 

General government 
Public safety 
Judicial system 

Health and welfare 
Cultural and recreation 

Totals 

Business-Type Activities 

Table 3 
Governmental Activities 

Total Cost of Services 

2016 2015 

$2,239,932 $2,202,027 $ 

2,634,005 2,643,215 
1,019,067 975,586 

717,708 619,393 
610,854 575,104 

$7,221,566 $7,015,325 $ 

Net Cost of Services 

2016 2015 

1,776,139 $ 1,530,211 

1,707,588 1,602,608 

433,189 368.339 
623,057 528,079 
265,812 257,107 

4,805,785 $ 4,286,344 

The County's business-type activities net position totaled $3,210,299, with an increase in net 
position in the current year of $190, 171. 

THE COUNTY'S FUNDS 

The focus of the governmental funds of the County is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows and balances in spendable resources. The fund information is useful to detennine short­
term financing requirements and can be used to measure the County's net resources available for 
spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

For the current fiscal year the County's governmental funds reported total fund balance of 
$3,781,561, which $2,019,074 was unassigned. The General Fund's fund balance amounted to 
$2,277,046. The General Fund had a decrease in fund balance of$67,873, representing a decrease of 
2.9% over the prior year fund balance. The previous year (2015) had an increase in fund balance of 
$47,431, representing an increase of 2.0% over the previous year (2014) fund balance. Actual 
revenue exceeded expenditures by $115,598 before net transfers of ($183,471) resulting in the 
decrease in fund balance of $67,873. 

The Maintenance of Effort - Medicare Fund had a fund balance of $353,396 which is all restricted. 
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The Youth Camp Fund has a total fund balance of$107,615 with $4,112 shown asnonspendable for 
inventory and prepaid items and $103,503 as assigned fund balance. 

The 2012 Refunding Bond Debt Service Fund has restricted fund balance of$63,572. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Over the course of the year, the budget was amended to recognize unbudgeted revenue and authorize 
required expenditures. The budgeted revenues, including transfers in, net change from the original 
budget to the final amended budget amounted to $5,358 representing a decrease of about 0.10%. In 
contrast, the 2015 net change was $1,113,850 representing an increase of 20.8%. 

Actual revenue, including transfers in, was $5,560,852 as compared with final amended budgeted 
revenue of $5,476,318, resulted in a variance of $84,534 or 1.5%. 

The final amended budgeted expenditures, including transfers out, decreased by $5,359 over the 
original budget, representing a decrease of 0.10%. In contrast, the 2015 final amended budget 
expenditures increased by $1,093,040 over the original budget representing an increase of20.2%. 

Actual expenditures and other financial uses amounted to $5,628,725 compared with final amended 
budgeted expenditures of$5,476,317, resulting in a negative variance of$152,408 or-2.8%. 

2016 General Fund Revenues 

Licenses and 
Permits Other 

Interest and Rentals 
0% 

I 

0% 

Charges for~ 
8% --· - . ( ··• .... , .. 

,""" .......... _ ·-
Taxes_;;;,...,- ..... . 
59% 

9 

Federal Sources 
9% e Federal Sources 

Iii State Sources 

aTaxes 

a Charges for Services 

• Interest and Rentals 

D Licenses and Perm Its 

&IOther 



2016 General Fund Expenditures 

Other­
Appropriations 

So/c Capital Outlay 
Recreation and O 4% 

Culture 
0% 

Health and Welfare 
1% 

!
-~"'-······· · 

Public Safety .::: -~ 

31% 

Legislative 
3% 

Judicial System 
18% 

General 
Government 

38% 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

Q Legislative 

l!IJudicial System 

DGeneral Government 

DPublic Safety 

lit Health and Welfare 

D Recreation and Culture 

l!I Other-Appropriations 

a capital Outlay 

At the end of fiscal year 2015, the County had $4,384,258 net of accumulated depreciation, invested 
in a variety of capital assets including land, buildings, vehicles, equipment and infrastructure. (See 
table 4 below). 

Land 

Buildings 

Vehicles 

Equipment 
Infrastructure 

Totals 

Debt 

$ 

Table 4 
Capital Assets at Year-End 

(Net of accumulated depreciation) 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

2016 2015 2016 2015 

189,118 $ 189,118 $ $ 

3,225,043 3,350,818 
616,105 89,542 12,637 12,624 
102,308 677,560 
239,047 136,655 

$4,371,621 $4,443,693 $ 12,637 $ 12,624 

At year-end the County had $5,822,000 in bonds and loans outstanding. 

10 



Table 5 
Outstanding Debt at Year-End 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
2015 2015 2016 2015 

General Obligation Unlimited Bonds: 
Refunding Bonds - 20 I 2 $ 5,535,000 $ 6,130,000 $ $ 

General Obligation Limited Bonds: 
County Courthouse Complex - 2003 287,000 298,000 

Totals $ 5,822,000 $ 6,428,000 $ $ 
==== 

The State of Michigan limits the amount of general obligation debt that local units of government 
can issue to 10% of the current equalized valuation, including Tlf valuations. The County's 
outstanding general obligation debt of $5,822,000 is well below statutory limits. There is no 
outstanding debt for business-type activities at year-end. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES 

The County Board of Commissioners and county management have considered many factors when it 
adopted and amends the 2017 fiscal year budget, and tax rates and fees that will be charged for 
services. 

Throughout the 2017 budget process, management has considered the cash flow problems passed 
onto the local government by the State of Michigan, however in 2016 the County received $271,434 
in revenue sharing from the State and anticipates receiving approximately $273,300 in fiscal year 
2017. Faced with national increases in property foreclosures, the County has chosen to continue to 
increase the ba]ance available in the delinquent tax revolving funds to permit time]y advance 
distribution to the County's Cities and Tovmships, despite the continued increase in delinquent taxes. 
Iron County expects to experience comparable taxable value for the upcoming fiscal year. The 

County expects similar economic conditions and funding levels compared to 2016. 

These factors were taken into account when establishing and amending the 2017 budget. 

CONTACTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, tax payers and customers, as well as 
investors and creditors with a general overview of the County's finances and to show the County's 
accountabi1ity for the revenues it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional 
info1111ation, contact the County Administrator at the Iron County Courthouse, 2 South Sixth Street, 
Suite 7, Crysta] FalJs1 Michigan 49920-1413. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICUIGAI\ 
STATEMENT OJ,' NET POSITION 

December 31, 2016 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities ,.,clivities To1al 
ASSETS 

Current assets: 
C'ash and cash equivalents 

Unrestricted $ 3,503,19(; s 2,597,924 $ 6,101,120 
Receivables: 

State of Michigan 244,877 244,877 
AcCOWllS 53,324 53,324 
Notes 32,210 32,210 
Current/delinquent property taxes 2,302,01 J 2,302,0ll 

Assets limited to use 
Other assets 
Inventory 4,107 4,107 
Prepaid items 121,166 l2l 1l66 

Total current assets 6,260,891 2,597,924 8,85111815 

Noncurrcnt assets: 
Investments/assets limited lo use 
Delinquent taxes 620,655 620,655 
Accrued interest on taxes 86,367 86,367 
Capital asscls, net of accumulated depreciation 4,371,621 12,637 4,384,25l! 
Other assets 

Total noncurrent assets 4.371,621 719,659 5,09l,280 

Total assets 10,632,512 3,317,583 B,950 095 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOlJRCES 
Deferred outflow • pension plan 587,038 587,038 
Deferred loss on refunding 

Total deferred outtlows ofresources 587 038 587,038 

TOT AL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS Oli 
RESOURCES $ 11,219,550 $ 3.317,583 $ 141537,133 

J.IAHJLITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 260,287 3,044 263,331 
Accrued payroll 144,145 779 144,924 
Ac1--rued interest 21,982 21,982 
Other liabilities 103,461 103,461 
Long-term liabilities due withio one year: 

CompcDsatcd absences 39,351 39,351 
Bonds/Joans payable 6271000 627,000 

Total current liabilities 1,092,765 107,284 1,2001049 

I .ong-tenn liabilities: 
Compensated absences 118,054 118,054 
Post employment benefit obligation 
Net pension liability 2,994,060 2,994,060 
lionds/loans payable 5,195,000 5,195,000 

Total long-1cnn liabilities 8,307,114 8,307,114 

Total liabilities 9,399,879 107,284 9,507,163 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred inllows of resources: 

Unavailable revenue 32,210 32,210 
Taxes levied for a subsequent period 21042,688 2,042,688 

Total deferred inflows of resources 21074,898 2,074,898 

SKr t>OSl'r!OJ\ 
Net inve~lment in capital assets 2,442,912 12,637 2,455,549 
Restricted for expendable: 

Special revenue 699,498 699,498 
D..:bt service 64,495 64,495 

Unrestricted !J,462,132} 3,197,662 (264,470) 

Total net position (deficit) (255,227) 3,210,299 2,955,072 

TOTAi. LIABIUTJJ,:S, DIWERRED ll\'FLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND NET POSITIOJ\ (DEFICIT) $ 11,219,550 $ 3,317,583 $ 14,537,133 

See accompanying notes to the financial statement.~ 
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COmJ?2nCnl Units 
Road District Medical Care 

Commission Health Facilitv 

$ 2,101,269 $ 502,951 s 2,901,176 

650,399 696,798 
20,465 111,532 1,779,332 

599,742 
129,425 

544,878 
17 958 

3 334,969 1,311,281 5,409,675 

435,404 

22,503,806 287,9l9 21,547,270 

22,503,806 287,919 21,982,674 

25,838,775 1,599,200 27,392,349 

531,751 469,837 4,458,878 
10 390 

542 141 469,837 4,458,878 

$ 26,380,916 $ 2,069,037 $ 31,851,227 

256,666 58,778 492,326 
34,023 89,868 901,919 
18,468 &5,758 

423,458 361 253,292 

44,609 48,724 1,457,640 
163 087 340 418 
940 311 197,731 3,531,353 

133,828 146,172 
1,269,577 1,283,624 
7,577,992 3,568,726 9,465,539 
1,609,188 6,302,518 

10,590,585 3 714 898 17,051,681 

11,530,896 3,912,629 20,583,034 

20,731,531 287,919 14,904,334 

903,257 
(5,881,511) !2,131,51 I) !4,539,398} 

14,850,020 0,843,592) 11,268,193 

s 26,380,916 s 2,069,037 $ 31,851,227 

Sc(; accompanying notes to the financial s1atcments 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICfflGAN 
STATE:\-IENTOF AC'l'IVfJ'lES 

t'or the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

Prol!!:am Revenue Nil! !Ex2ense! Revenue and Chanl:\e,; in Net Position 
Primary Government 

Fees, Fines and Operating Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Busincss·t)-pe Component 

J•unctions/l'ro.,rams Ex12enses Senices Contributions Contributions Activities Acti,ities Total Units 
Primary go,•ernmcnt: 

<iovemmental activities: 
I .cgislative $ 171,124 s $ s s (171,124) s $ (171,124) $ 
Judicial system 1.019,067 166,064 419,814 (433,Ill\l) (433. 189) 
General government 2,239,932 179,879 283,914 (1,776,139) (1,776,139) 
Public satety 2,634,005 632,339 294,078 (1,707,588) (1,707,58&) 
Hc~lth& wclfa1': 717.70& IJ,311 81,340 (623,057) (623,057) 
Culturnl and recreation 610,854 342,138 2,904 (265.812) (265,812) 
Highway & transportation 9,798 6,402 (3,396) (3,396) 
Community dcvcll'pmcnt l 1,520 51,069 9,914 49,463 49,463 
Other 576,491 22,464 1,828 (552,199) (552,199) 
Intere,;t on long-term debt 222.707 j222,707l (222,707l 

Total governmental activities 8,213,206 1,407,264 1,100,194 (5,705,748l (5,705,748l 

Business-type activines: 
Delinquent tax revolving/tax collections 86,633 299.158 212,525 212,525 
Building inspection 103 985 114 177 10,192 10192 

'.i: 
Total business-type activities 190 618 413 335 222,717 222,717 

Total primary government $ 8,403,S24 $ 1,820,599 $ 1,100,194 s $ (5,705, 74S) s 222,717 $ (5,483,031) $ 

Component 1mits: 
Road Commission 6.266,160 1,455,983 2.237,684 2,610,336 37,843 
District Health Depmtment 3,178,254 1,621.970 693,218 (863,066) 
Medical Care Facility 23,691,853 22,546,860 jl.144,993) 

Total cmnponent unit< $ 33,136,267 s 25.6242813 $ 2.930,902 $ 2,610,336 (1,970,216) 

Gcncrnl revenues: 
Property taxes, levied for general purpose 4.435,1':13 4,435,193 816,679 
Property laxes, levied for dc:bt service 826,916 &26,916 
State revenue sharing 271,434 271,434 
Unrestricted grants and contribulions 576,285 576,285 
Unrestricted investment eamings 6,844 7,454 14,298 33,268 
Contributions from other co,mly funds 300,000 
Miscellaneous 52,428 52,42& 

Transfers 40,000 (40,000l 

Total general revenues, special items, and transfors 6~09.100 (32,546! 6,176.554 1,149 947 

Change in net position 503,352 190,171 693,S23 (820,269) 

Net position, beginning of year (758.579l 3,020,128 2J61,549 25,094,890 
Net po.sition (deficit), ending $ (255,227! $ 3,210,299 $ 2,955,072 $ 24,274,621 

See accompanying notes to the financial statement~ 



ASSETS 
Cash and equivalents: 

Unrestricted 
Receivables: 

State of Michigan 
Accounts 
Notes 
Current property tax.es 

Inventory 
Prepaid items 

Total assets 

LlABILITIES AND DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows ofresources: 
Unavailable revenue 
Taxes levied for a subsequent period 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable: 

Inventory 
Prepaid items 

Restricted 
Assigned - compensated absences 

- purpose of fund 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fund balances 

COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
December 31, 2016 

Maintenance of 
General Fund Effort - Medicare 

$ 2,033,843 $ 414,674 

131,133 
21,042 

259,323 738,32 l 

111,753 

$ 2,557,094 $ 1,152,995 

$ 166,808 $ 61,278 
113,240 

280,048 61,278 

738,321 

738,321 

111,753 
353,396 

146,219 

2,019,074 

2,277,046 353,396 

$ 2,557,094 $ 1,152,995 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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2012 
Refunding Bond 

Youth Came Debt Service 

$ 106,292 $ 63,572 

246,107 826,919 
4,107 

5 

$ 356,511 $ 890,491 

$ $ 
2,789 

2,789 

246,107 826,919 

246,107 826,919 

4,107 
5 

63,572 

103,503 

107,615 63,572 

$ 356,511 $ 890,491 



Nonmajor Total 
Governmental Governmental 

Funds Funds 

$ 884,815 $ 3,503,196 

113,744 244,877 
32,282 53,324 
32,210 32,210 

231,341 2,302,01 I 
4,107 

9,408 121,166 

$ 1,303,800 $ 6,260,891 

$ 32,201 $ 260,287 
28,116 144,145 

60,317 404,432 

32,210 32,210 
231,341 2,042,688 

263,551 2,074,898 

4,107 
9,408 121,166 

347,025 763,993 
146,219 

623,499 727,002 
2,019,074 

979,932 3,781,561 

$ 1,303,800 $ 6,260,891 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENT AL FUND BALANCE 

TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENT AL ACTIVITIES 
December 31, 2016 

Total fund balances for governmental funds 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position 
is different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of: 

Capital assets 
Accwnulated depreciation 

Total capital assets 

Deferred outflow of resouces related to recording of net pension liability. 

long-tenn liabilities applicable to the County's governmental activities are not 
due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as 
fund liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental 
funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. All liabilities, 
both current and long-term, are reported in the statement of net position. 

Accrued interest on long-term debt 
Net pension liability 

9,950,719 
(5,579,098) 

(21,982) 
(2,994,060) 
(5,822,000) 

$ 3,781,561 

4,371,621 

587,038 

Bonds/loans payable 
Compensated absences (157,405) (8,995,447) 

Total net position (deficit) of governmental activities $ (255,227) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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COUNTY OF IRON. MICHIGAN 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN t,'UND BALANCE 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

201 2 
Maintenance of Refunding Bond 

General Fund Effort - Medicare Youth Camp Debt Service 
REVENUES: 

Taxes $ 3,207,277 $ 747,107 $ 248,706 $ 826,91 6 
Licenses and pennits 8, 176 
Federal sources 511,440 1,139 
State sources 1,166,069 1,258 429 
Charges for services 440,879 204,102 
Interest and rentals· 6,844 2,044 536 122 
Other 8l,002 385 1,380 

Total revenues 5,421 ,687 750,409 455,297 828,41 8 

.EXPENDITURES: 
Legislative 171 ,124 
Judicial system 937,027 
General government 2,031,895 
Public safety 1,626,037 
Highway and transportation 
Cultural and recreation 932 437,120 
Health and welfare 58,088 399,286 
Community development 
Capital outlay 211 ,257 28,989 
Debt service: 

Principal 595,000 
Interest 211 ,725 

Other 269,729 300,000 200 

Total expt:nditures 5,306,089 699,286 466,109 806,925 

Excess revenues (expenditures) 115,598 51 ,123 (10,812) 21 ,493 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer in 139,165 
Transfer out (322,636) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (183471) 

Net change in fund balance (67,873) 51 ,123 (10,812) 21,493 

Fund balances - beginning of the year 2,344,919 302,273 118,427 42,079 

Fund balances - end of year $ 2,277!046 $ 3532396 $ 107,6 l5 $ 63,572 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Nonmajor Total 
Governmental Governmental 

Funds Funds 

$ 232,103 $ 5,262,109 
8,176 

512,579 
247,468 1,415,224 
636,316 l,2!!1,297 

7,950 17,496 
125,484 208,251 

1,249,321 8,705,132 

171,124 
15,849 952,876 
29,822 2,061,717 

862,194 2,488,231 
9,798 9,798 

142,349 580,401 
260,334 717,708 

11,520 11,520 
29,331 269,577 

11,000 606,000 
12,665 224,390 
6,562 576,491 

1,391,424 8,669,833 

(142,103) 35,299 

322,636 461,801 
(99,165) (421,801} 

223,471 40,000 

lll,368 75,299 

898,564 3,706,262 

$ 979,932 $ 3,781,561 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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IRON COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

ANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCESOFGOVERNMENTALFUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of activities is different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the .statement of activities the cost of those assets is capitalized and 
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives 
and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
depreciation expense ($313,075) is more than capital outlays ($269,577). 

Loss on disposal of capital assets. 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but 
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in governmental funds, 
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with 
expendable available financial resources. In the statement of activities, 
however, which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are 
reported regardless of when financial resources are available. In addition, 
interest on long-term debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basis 
of accounting until due, rather than as it accrues. This adjustment combines 
the following net changes: 

Compensated absences 
Pen.'>ion expense 
Accrued interest on bonds 

Changes in net position of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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$ 11,216 
(118,773) 

1,683 

$ 75,299 

(43,498) 

(28,575) 

606,000 

(105,874) 

$ 503,352 



COUNTY OF ffiONs MICHIGAN 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
December 31, 2016 

Total 
Tax Construction Enterprise 

Revolving Code Funds 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents: 
Unrestricted $ 2,379,839 $ 218,085 $ 2,597,924 

T otaJ current assets 2,379,839 218,085 2,597,924 

Noncurrent assets: 
Receivables: 

Delinquent taxes 620,655 620,655 
Accrued interest on taxes 86,367 86,367 

Capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation 6,325 6,312 12,637 

Total noncurrent assets 713,347 6,312 719,659 

Total assets $ 3,093,186 $ 224,397 $ 3,317,583 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 2,936 $ 108 $ 3,044 
Accrued payroll 779 779 
Due to other governmental units 103,461 103,461 

Total liabilities 106,397 887 107,284 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 6,325 6,312 12,637 
Unrestricted 2,980,464 217,198 3,197,662 

Total net position 2,986,789 223,510 3,210,299 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 3,093,186 $ 224,397 $ 3,317,583 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements 
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COUNTY OF JRONi MICHIGAN 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31~ 2016 

Total 
Tax Construction Enterprise 

Revolving Code Funds 

OPERA TING REVENUES: 
License and pennits $ $ 112,677 $ I )2,677 
Charges for services 144,159 144,159 
Penalties and interest on taxes 148,318 148,318 
Other 6,681 l,500 8,181 

Total operating revenue 299,158 114,177 413,335 

OPERA TING EXPENSES: 
Salaries and fringes 22,342 22,342 
Depreciation expense 452 6,312 6,764 
Other 86,181 75,331 161,512 

Total operating expenses 86,633 103,985 190,618 

Operating income (loss) 212,525 10,192 222,717 

NONOPERA TING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
Interest on investments 7,454 7,454 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 7,454 7,454 

Income (loss) before transfers 
and contributions 219,979 10,192 230,171 

Transfer out (40,000) (40,000) 

Change in net position 179,979 10,192 190,171 

Total net position - beginning 2,806,810 213,318 3,020,128 

Total net position - ending $ 2,986,789 $ 223,510 $ 3,210,299 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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COUNTY OF moN2 MICHIGAN 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIET ARV FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

Total 
Tax Construction Enterprise 

Revolving Code Funds 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers $ 303,137 $ 112,677 $ 415,814 
Cash received for coJJection of taxes 1,496,772 1,496,772 
Other receipts 1,500 1,500 
Payments for wages and related benefits (22,245) (22,245) 
Cash payments for taxes (1,445,646) (1,445,646) 
Other payments (93,413) (75,977) (169,390) 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 260,850 15,955 $ 276,805 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Operating transfer in 
Operating transfer out (40,000) (40,000) 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
financing activities (40,000) (40,000) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds/(payments) for capital assets (6,777) (6,777) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest earnings 7,455 7,455 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents 221,528 15,955 237,483 

Cash and equivalents, beginning of year 2,158,311 202,130 2,360,441 

Cash and equivalents, end of year $ 2,379,839 $ 218,085 $ 2,597,924 

Reconciliation of operating income (Joss) to net 
cash provided by operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) $ 212,525 $ 10,192 $ 222,717 
Adjustments to reconcile opernting income (Joss) 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 452 6,312 6,764 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in receivables 55,105 55,105 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 30 (646) (616) 
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities (7,262) 97 (7,165) 

Total adjustments 48,325 5,763 54,088 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 260,850 $ 15,955 $ 276,805 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents: 

Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Receivables: 

COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
December 31, 2016 

Private Purpose 
Trust 

Youth Camp 
Scholarship 

Fund 

$ 

7,807 

Due from other governmental units 
Due from external parties 

Total assets $ 7,807 

LIABILITIES 
Due to external parties $ 
Undistributed taxes 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities $ 

NET POSITION 
Reserved for scholarships $ 7,807 

Total net position $ 7,807 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Agency 
Funds 

$ 386,927 

$ 386,927 

$ 2,637 
224,170 
160,120 

$ 386,927 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES JN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

ADDITIONS: 
Interest on investments 

DEDUCTIONS: 
Scholarships awarded 

Change in net position 

Net position, beginning of year 

Net position, end of year 

December 31, 2016 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Private Purpose 
Trust 

$ 

$ 

Youth Camp 
Scholarship 

Fund 

7,807 

7,807 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

BackgroW1d - The County of Iron was organized under the Michigan Constitution. The County is operated 
under a Commission form of government and provides services in the following functional areas: legislative, 
courts, public records, public roads, management, building operation and expense, human services, resource 
management and development, Jaw enforcement, and health services. 

The financial statements of the County have been prepared in confonnity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial 
reporting principles. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GASB Statement 34, 
Basic Financial Statements and management's Discussion and Analysis. 

Reporting Entity - For financial reporting purposes, in conformance with GASB Statement 14, as amended, 
Iron Cow1ty (the primary government) includes all funds, account groups, agencies, boards, commissions, 
otber component units, and authorities that are controlled by or dependent on the County's legislative branch, 
the County Commission. Control by or dependence is determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing 
authority, outstanding debt secured by revenues or general obligations of the County, obligation of the 
County to finance any deficits that may occur, or receipt of significant subsidies from the County. h1 
addition, State of Michigan - Department of Treasury pronouncements were considered in the detennination 
process. The component units discussed below are included in the County's reporting entity because of the 
significance of their operational or financial relationships with the County. 

Component Units - fu conformity with genera11y accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of 
component units have been included in the financial reporting entity either as blended component units or as 
discretely presented component units. 

Blended Component Units - The County has one component unit for which the financial data has been 
blended with the primary government financial statements. 

Economic Development Corporation - The Economic Development Corporation was incorporated 
as a non-profit corporation under the provisions of Act No. 338 of the Public Acts of 1974, as 
amended, for the purpose of preventing conditions of unemployment and to assist commercial 
enterprise in order to strenhJfhen and revitalize the economy of Iron County. The Economic 
Development Corporation Board of Directors is appointed by the Iron County Board of 
Commissioners. Complete financial statements of the Economic Development Corporation can be 
obtained directly from their administrative office when available. 

Economic Development Corporation 
2 South Sixth, Suite 8 

Crystal Falls, Michigan 49920 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Discretely presented component unit - The component unit columns in the combined financial statements 
include the financial data of the Iron County Road Commission, Dickinson-Iron District Health 
Department, and the Iron County Medical Care Facility. The component units are reported in a separate 
column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the County. 

Iron County Road Commission - A five-member board governs the Road Commission, which are 
elected. The Road Commission may not issue debt or levy property taxes without the County's 
approval. The Road Commission follows the requirements of the Uniform Budgeting and 
Accounting Act, Michigan Public Act 621 of 1978 in the preparation and execution of its' annual 
general appropriations act. Complete financial statements at the Road Commission can be obtained 
directly from their administration office. 

Iron County Road Commission 
800 FrankJin Street 

Iron River, Michigan 49935 

Dickinson-Iron District Health Department - The members of the governing board of the 
Dickinson-Iron District Health are jointly appointed by the Iron County Board of Commissioners 
and the Dickinson County Board of Commissioners. The Health Department's operations and 
capital budgets are approved by the Cow1ty Commissioners. Complete financial statements of the 
Health Department can be obtained directly from their administrative office. 

Dickinson-Iron District Health 
601 Washington, P.O. Box 516 

Stambaugh, Michigan 49964 

Iron County Medical Care Facility-The Facility is a 200-bed, long-term medical care wlit owned 
and operated by Iron County. The facility also operates a 25-bed assisted living unit. It is governed 
by the Iron County Department of Human Services Board. This Board consists of three members, 
two of whom are appointed by the Iron County Board of Commissioners, and one appointed by the 
Michigan Governor. Further, the Iron County Board of Commissioners approves the budget for the 
Facility. Complete financial statements of the Facility can be obtained directly from their 
administrative office. 

Iron County Medical Care Facility 
1523 w. us 2 

Crystal Falls, Michigan 49920 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Decembe1· 31, 2016 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Jointly Governed Organization - Iron County entered into an inter-local agreement with Dickinson and 
Menominee Counties on October 26, 1994 for the purpose of establishing an Authority to govem commWlity 
mental health programs. The Northpointe Behavioral Healthcare Systems Authority was established pursuant 
to the Michigan Constitution of 1963, Article 7; Section 28, the Mental Health Code, 1974 PA 258, as 
amended, and the Urban Cooperation Act, 1967 PA 7 and is governed by a twelve member board. The board 
is made up of five members each from Menominee and Dickinson Counties and two members from Iron 
County. The County does not have an ongoing financial interest or an ongoing financial responsibility in 
Northpointe but did make an appropriation in the amount of $44,113. Complete financial statements for 
Northpointe can be obtained from their administrative office. 

Northpointe Behavioral Healthcare Systems Authority 
715 Pyle Drive 

Kingsford, Michigan 49801 

Based on the foregoing criteria, the following organizations are not included in the financial report of the 
County of Iron: 

Iron County Housing Cmporation - The Housing Commission provides housing for the poor and the 
elder]y with the use of federal (HUD) grants. 

Iron County Chamber of Commerce - The Chamber of Commerce provides informational and 
economical development for tourism and business. 

Iron County Community Hospitals, Inc. - The Community Hospitals, Inc. is a not-for-profit health 
system, which provides acute care and Jong-term care to the residents of Iron County, Michigan. 

Accounting Policies - The accounting poJicies of the County of Iron conform to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to state and local governments. The 
following is a summary of the more significant policies: 

Fund Accounting - The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is 
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of 
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are 
allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and 
the means by which spending activities are controlled. 

28 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Government-wide and fund financial statements - The government-wide financial statements include a 
Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities which report the infonnation on all non-fiduciary 
activities of the primary government and its component units. Most of the effects of interfund activity have 
been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenue, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely primarily on 
user fees and charges for service. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain 
legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identified with a specific 
function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges for services to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a specific function or 
segment and 2) operating grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operating or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment and 3) other revenues that are by definition related to the 
cost of providing a specific function or segment. Taxes and other items not specific to particular functions or 
segments are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, 
even though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual 
governmental funds and major enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial 
statements. 

Measmement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation - The government-wide 
financial statements use the economic resomces measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting 
which also include the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash 
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year in which they are levied. The County levies all of 
its operating millage on July 1 si, these amounts are recognized as revenue when collected as well as the 
amount the County expects to receive as part of the tax settlement which is usually within 180 days of the 
end of the County's fiscal year end. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resomces measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectable within the current period or 
soon thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers 
revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a Jiability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt 
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments are 
recorded only when the payment is due. 

29 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Property taxes, licenses, interest revenue and charges for services are considered susceptible to accrual and 
have been recognized as revenues in the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurab]e and available only when cash is received by the County. 

The County reports the following as major governmental funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund. It accounts for all the 
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Maintenance of Effort - Medicare Fund - The Maintenance of Effort - Medicare Fund was established to 
account for the maintenance of effort activities of the Medical Care Facility. 

Youth Camp Fund - The Youth Camp Fw1d was established to account for the activities of operating a 
county summer youth camp. 

2012 Refunding Bond Debt Service Fund - The 2012 Refunding Bond Debt Service Fund was 
established to account for the refinancing of the 2002 Medical Care Facility Bond and the 2003 
Courthouse Bond. 

The County reports the following as major proprietary funds: 

Tax Revolving Fund -This fund accounts for the purchase and subsequent collection of delinquent real 
property taxes from the various taxing units throughout the county. 

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types: 

Governmental Funds: 

Special revenue funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt or 
capital projects. 

Debt service funds-Debt service funds are used to account for and report the financial resources that are 
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. 

Capital projects funds - Capita] project funds are used to account for and report financial resources that 
are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or 
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Proprietary Funds: 

Enterprise fonds - Enterprise funds may be used to, "report any activity for which a fee is charged to 
external users for goods and services." GASB Statement 34 states that enterprise funds must be used to 
account for an activity if any of the following three criteria is satisfied: 

• The activity is financed with debt that is secured solely by a pledge of the net revenues from fees 
and charges of the activity. 

• Laws or regulations require that the activity's costs of providing services, including capital costs 
( such as depreciation or capital debt service), be recovered with fees and charges, rather than 
with taxes or similar revenues. 

• The pricing policies of the activity establishes fees and charges designed to recover its costs, 
including capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service). 

Fiduciary Funds: 

Agency funds - Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or 
as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. Agency funds 
are custodial in nature ( assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 

Private-Purpose Trust Funds - Private-Purpose trust funds are used to account for the receipt and 
expenditures of assets held under a trust agreement. The Private-Purpose Trust fund maintained by the 
County is the Youth Camp Scholarship Fund. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the governmental-wide financial 
statements. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Tax Revolving 
enterprise funds are charges to customers for interest and fees collected on delinquent property taxes. 
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of services and administrative expenses. 

All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting - The County utilizes the following procedures in establishing the 
budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

a. In mid-year a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1st is 
submitted to the County Board of Commissioners. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures 
and the means of financing them. 

b. Numerous opportunities exist for public comment during the budget process including at least one 
fonnal public hearing conducted at the Courthouse to obtain taxpayer comment. 

c. Pursuant to statute, prior to commencement of a year, the budget for the ensuing year is legally enacted 
through adoption by the County Board of Commissioners. 

d. The general statute governing County budgetary activity is the Unifonn Budgeting and Accounting Act. 

e. The County of Iron adopts its annual budget on a line item basis. The budget structure consists oflevels 
of detail as follows: 

Resources (revenues) 
General appropriations and functional groups 
Departmental appropriations 

At each level of detail, governmental operations are summarized into revenue or expenditure accowit 
groups. Budgetary control exists at the level adopted by the Board of Commissioners. Accounting, i. e. 
classification control, resides at the line item detail level. 

£ Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with the accounting principles followed in the recording of 
transactions. Budgeted amounts reflected in the financial statements are as origina11y adopted and 
subsequently amended by the County Board of Commissioners. 

g. Budgets of certain funds reflect utilization of a portion of beginning fund balance. Only the appropriated 
beginning fwid balance amount is reflected in the budgets under the caption "Fund balance, beginning of 
year." 

h. Budgets have been amended during 2016. All budget amendments are presented to the Finance 
Committee. In November, the Board of Commissioners approved the final amendments to the annual 
budget. 

Cash Equivalents - For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the County considers all highly liquid 
investments with maturities of1ess than three months as cash equivalents. 

Investments - Investments are carried at market with all dividends being reinvested. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Receivables - All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the 
estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. The County has not recorded an allowance for 
uncollectible accounts, as the County does not anticipate that amount to be material. 

Interfund Receivables and Payables - During the course of operations, nwnerous transactions occur between 
individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivab]es and payables are classified as 
"due from other funds" and "due to other funds" on the balance sheet. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources - In addition to assets, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet wi11 
sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement 
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a conswnption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so wi11 not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The 
Road Co1mnission has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, which is the deferred loss on 
refunding. A deferred loss on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of the refunded debt 
and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded 
or refunding debt. The County has pension plan items that qualify for reporting in this category. 

Deferred fuflows of Resources - In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and governmental 
funds balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate 
financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents as acquisition of net position that 
applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 
The County has property taxes and EDC loans that qualify for reporting in this category. The Road 
Commission has other state grants related to Public Act 252 that qualify for reporting in this category. 

Inventory - Inventory is priced at cost as detennined on the first-in, first-out method for the Youth Camp 
special revenue fund. Inventory of the Iron County Road Commission is valued at cost as determined by the 
average cost method 

Prepaid Items - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Current Property Taxes Receivable - The County General Fund property tax is levied on each July I st and 
other County approved millage arc levied on December I st on the taxable valuation of the property located in 
the County as of the preceding March 31 st and December 31 s1, respectively. 

The extra voted millage of th~ County's 2016 ad valorem taxes are levied and co11ectible on December l, 
2015. It is the County policy to recognize revenues from the current tax levy in the subsequent fiscal year 
when the proceeds from this levy are budgeted and made available for the financing of the extra voted 
millage purposes. The County also levies all of its operating millage on July 1st, these amounts are 
recognized as revenue when collected as well as the amount the County expects to receive as part of the tax 
settlement which is usually within 180 days of the end of the County's fiscal year end. 
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December 31, 2016 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

The December 1, 2016 tax ]evy for all of the Cowity's extra voted millage wi11 be recorded as taxes 
receivable and deferred inflows of resources are anticipated to raise the following tax revenue for fiscal year 
2017: Youth Camp $246,107; MCF Operations $738,321; Senior Citizens $132,898; Health Department 
$206,730; County Road Commission $246,107; 2012 Refunded Bond Retirement $826,919; and 911 
Equipment $98,443. 

The 2015 taxable valuation of Iron County amounted to $488,814,517 on which ad valorem tax.es of .5000 
mills were levied for Youth Camp; 1.500 mills for MCF Operations; .2700 mills for Senior Citizens Fund, 
.4200 mills for Health Department; .5000 mills for County Road Commission; 1.66 mills for 2012 Refunding 
Bond Debt; and .2000 for 911 Equipment. The County also levied 6.4300 mills as part of the July I st levy, 
which had a 2016 tax.able valuation of $490,103,209. 

For fiscal year 2016, the December 2015 tax levy raised approximately $243,000 for Youth Camp; $730,000 
for MCF Operations; $131,000 for Senior Citizens; $204,000 for Health Department; $243,000 for Comity 
Road Commission; $807,000 for2012 Refunding Bond Debt and $97,000 for 911 Equipment. 

Capital Assets - Capital assets which include property, buildings, equipment and infrastructure assets are 
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide 
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the County as assets with an initial individual cost of 
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life of more than one year. Such assets are recorded at historical 
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend its 
life are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is included as part of the 
capitalized value of the assets constructed. 

Property, plant, and equipment of the Cowity, as well as its component units, are depreciated using the 
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives, except for road equipment for the Road 
Commission which uses the sum-of-the-year's-digits, are computed: 

Buildings 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Infrastructure - Roads 
Infrastructw·e - Bridges 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Compensated Absences - Compensated absences (unpaid vacation and sick leave) for governmental fund 
and similar component unit employees are recorded as expenditures in the year paid. County employees are 
granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based upon employment classification and length of 
service. Upon termination, employees are paid for accumulated vacation and sick time, based upon current 
rate of pay, subject to certain limitations. It is the County's policy to liquidate any unpaid vacation or sick 
leave at year-end from future resources rather than currently available expendable resources. Accordingly, 
the entire unpaid liability for compensated absences for the governmental funds and similar component units 
are accrued in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary financial statements. 

Long-Tenn Obligations - In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund 
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-tenn obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. 

Fund Equity- Equity Classifications for Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements are as follows: 

Government-wide Financial Statements - Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three 
components: 

a. Net investment in capital assets - This component consists of capital assets net of accumulated 
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balance of any bonds, notes or other borrowings 
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 

b. Restricted net position - This component consists of net position with constraints placed on their 
use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws and regulations 
of other govennnents; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

c. Unrestricted net position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or 
"net investment in capital assets." 

Fund Financial Statements - The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on 
classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the County is 
bound to honor constraints on the specific pwpose for which amowits in the respective governmental 
funds can be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as 
follows: 

• Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either 
(a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The 
County has classified prepaid items and inventories as being nonspendable as these items are not 
expected to be converted to cash or are not expected to be converted to cash within the next year. 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

• Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the 
use of the resotrrces either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), 
grant ors, contributors, or laws or regulations of the other governments, or (b) imposed by law 
through constitutiona] provisions or enabling legislation. 

• Committed: lbis classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the County Board of Commissioners. These 
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board removes or changes the specified 
use by taking the same type of action ( ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the 
funds were initial1y committed. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the 
extent that existing resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those 
contractual requirements. 

• Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the County's intent to be 
used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor connnitted and are generally imposed by 
the County Board of Commissioners. This classification also includes the remaining positive 
fund balance for all governmental funds except for the General Fund. The County has various 
assigned fund balances that are specifically identified on the face of the financial statements. 

• Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund. The 
unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other governmental 
fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of assigned fund balance amounts. 

For purposes of fund balance c1assification, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance 
first (when appropriate), followed in order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and 
]astly, unassigned fund balance. 

The Board desires to maintain a General Fund unrestricted fund balance equal to two months 
operating expenditures. 

Budget Stabilization Funds - With the implementation of GASB 54, budget stabilization funds are required 
to be reported within the General Fund, and beginning and ending fund ba1ances are reflected within the fund 
balances of the General Fund as of year-end. As of December 31, 2016, budget stabilization funds in the 
amount of $378,326 are categorized as unassigned fund balance in the General Fund for the purpose of future 
budget shortfalls and emergencies and can only be used if authorized by a 2/3 vote of the members serving 
on the County Board. 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) - The transfers of cash between the various County funds are budgeted but 
reported separately from revenues and expenditures as operating transfers in or (out), unless they represent 
temporary advances that are to be repaid, in which case, they are canied as assets and liabilities of the 
advancing and borrowing fwids, respectively. 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) . 

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabi1ities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

NOTE B - BUDGET NON-COMPLIANCE 

Budget Violations - Public Act 621 of 1978, as amended, requires the adoption of a balanced budget for the 
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds, as well as budget amendments as needed to prevent actual 
expenditures from exceeding those provided for in the budget. 

During the year ended December 31, 2016 expenditures were incurred in excess of amounts appropriated in 
the amended budgets for the following funds: 

Total 
Appropriations Expenditures Budget Variance 

General Fund 
Judicial System $ 926,250 $ 937,027 $ (10,777) 
Health and Welfare 33,090 58,088 (24,998) 
Other Appropriations 168,893 269,729 (100,836) 

Family Counseling 1,000 2,000 (1,000) 
Senior Citizens 133,962 134,639 (677) 
Soldiers Relief 1,100 1,267 (167) 
Plat Book 4,000 8,877 (4,877) 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Decembe1· 31, 2016 

NOTE C- CASH & EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

The composition of cash and equivalents, and investments as reported in the Statement of Net Position is 
presented below: 

Cash and equivalents: 
Imprest cash 
Deposits: 

Insured (FDIC) 

Uninsured 
Total cash 

Government-Wide Statement of 
Net Position Presentation: 
Cash and equivalents: 

Unrestricted 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
Cash and equivalents: 

Restricted 
Umestricted 

Total cash and equivalents 

Component Units: 
Cash and equivalents: 

Road Commission 
District Health Department 
Medical Care Facility 

Total cash and equivalents 

Asset-; limited as to use: 
Medical Care Facility 

Prim~ Government 
Carrying 
Amount 

$ 1,750 

1,111,250 
5,382,854 

$ 6,495,854 

$ 6,101,120 

7,807 
386,927 

$ 6,495,854 

$ 2,101,269 
502,951 

2,901,176 
$ 5,505,396 

$ 1,035,146 

Bank 
Balance 

$ 1,109,415 
5,718,058 

$ 6,827,473 

Michigan statutes authorize the County to invest in bonds, other direct obligations and repurchase agreements 
of the United States, certificates of deposit, saving accounts, deposit accounts or receipts of a bank which is a 
member of the FDIC, commercial paper, bankers' acceptances of United States banks, obligations of the 
State of Michigan and its political subdivisions, external investment pools, and certain mutual funds. 

Attorney General's Opinion No. 6168 states that public funds may not be deposited in financial institutions 
located in states other than Michigan. 

Interest Rate Risk. The County canies no significant interest rate risk as all of its holdings are in bank 
accounts with a high degree of liquidity. The County has no policy regarding interest rate risk. 
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December 31, 2016 

NOTE C - CASH & EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Credit Risk State laws limits investments in commercial paper to the top two ratin~ issued by nationally 
recognized statistical rating organizations with a maximum maturity of 270 days. As of December 31, 2016, 
the County did not hold any commercial paper. The County has no policy regarding credit risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure the 
County's deposits may not be returned. At December 31, 2016, the County held $6,827,473 in checking and 
savings accounts. Of this amount, $5,718,058 was uninsured and uncollateralized. Although such deposits 
exceed federally insured limits, they are in the opinion of management, subject to minimal risk. The County 
has no policy regarding custodial credit risk. 

Concentration of Credit Risk The Cowity has no significant concentration of credit risk due to the fact that 
its deposits are with area banks. 

Foreign Currency Risk. The County has no foreign currency risk as it has no deposits or investments in 
foreign currency. 

All deposits for the County are in accordance with statutory authority. 

NOTED - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

There were no individual interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 2016. 
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NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS 

COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 3 J, 2016, was as follows: 

Balance at Balance at 
01/01/16 Additions DisEosals 12/31/16 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 189,118 $ $ $ 189,118 
Capital asset~ being depreciated: 

Buildings 7,656,735 50,889 30,000 7,677,624 
Equipment 1,274,263 44,899 1,319,162 
Vehicles 417,105 58,974 109,083 366,996 
Infrastructure 283,004 114,815 397,819 

Total depreciable assets 9,631,107 269,577 139,083 9,761,601 
Total capital assets 9,820,225 269,577 139,083 9,950,719 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Buildings 4,305,917 160,727 14,063 4,452,581 
Equipment 596,712 106,345 703,057 
Vehicles 327,563 33,580 96,455 264,688 
Infrastructure 146,349 12,423 158,772 

Total accumulated depreciation 5,376,541 313,075 l 10,518 5,579,098 
Net capital assets being depreciated 4,254,566 {43,498} 4,182,503 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 4,443,684 $ (43,498) $ 28,565 $ 4,371,621 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Equipment $ $ 6,777 $ $ 6,777 
Vehicles 31,559 31,559 

Total depreciable assets 31,559 6,777 38,336 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Equipment 452 452 
Vehicles 18,935 6,312 25,247 

Total accumulated depreciation 18,935 6,764 25,699 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 12,624 $ 13 $ $ 12,637 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Govemmental activities: Business-type activities: 
Judicial system $ 46,000 Building inspection 
General government 120,872 Tax revolving/collections 
Public safety 118,125 Tota] business-type activities 

$ 

Culture and recreation 28,078 depreciation expense $ 

Total governmental activities 
depreciation expense $ 313,075 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE F - ROAD COMMISSION CAPJT AL ASSETS 

A summary of capital assets as of December 31, 2016 for the Road Commission: 

Balance at 
01/01/16 Additions Diseosals 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land and Improvements $ 26,568 $ $ 
Constuction in progress 115,139 38,933 82,721 

Subtotal 141,707 38,933 82,721 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and Improvements 3,337,348 2,000 
Road equipment 4,248,824 558,241 2,254 
Shop equipment 92,057 2,525 
Engineers' equipment 25,958 
Office equipment 68,445 
Infrastructure - Roads 21,187,202 2,669,373 
lnfrast111cture - Bridges 3,632,330 52,646 

Total depreciable capital assets 32,592,164 3,284,785 2,254 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Buildings 1,331,845 107,349 
Road equipment 3,925,531 239,992 2,254 
Shop equipment 84,873 J,314 
Engineers' equipment 24,928 445 
Office equipment 64,493 1,336 
lnfrastructure - Roads 6,166,760 1,075,928 
Infrastmcture - Bridges 372,568 731700 

Total accumulated depreciation 11,970,998 1,500,064 2,254 

Net capital assets being depreciated 20,621,166 1,402,142 82,721 

Capital assets, net $20,762,873 $1,823,654 $ 82,721 

Balance at 
12/31/16 

$ 26,568 
71,351 

97,919 

3,339,348 
4,804,811 

94,582 
25,958 
68,445 

23,856,575 
3,684,976 

35,874,695 

1,439,194 
4,163,269 

86,187 
25,373 
65,829 

7,242,688 
446,268 

13,468,808 

22,405,887 

$22,503,806 

The Road Commission has elected to prospectively report infrastructure assets, rather than retroactively 
report on infrastructure, as permitted by GASB Statement 34. 

41 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE G - DISTRICT HEALTH CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of capital assets as of December 31, 2016 for the Dickinson-kon District Health Department: 

Beginning Ending 
Balances Balances 
1/1/2016 Additions Deductions 12/31/2016 

Capital assets: 
Equipment $ 405,208 $ 40,594 $ 28,380 $ 417,422 
Less: Accumulated depreciation ()43,0822, (14,799} (28,380) (129,503) 

Capital assets, net $ 262,124 $ 25,795 $ $ 287,919 

NOTE H -MEDICAL CARE FACILITY CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of capital assets as of December 31, 2016 for the kon County Medical Care Facility: 

Depreciable 
1/1/16 Additions Disposals 12/3 l/16 Life- Years 

Land and land improvements $ 883,205 $ 25,559 $ $ 908,764 10- 25 
Building 26,215,859 124,798 26,340,657 10-40 
Fixed equipment 3,623,037 28,715 3,651,752 4-20 
Moveable equipment 2,174,668 130,970 2,305,638 4-20 

Total capital assets 32,896,769 310,042 33,206,811 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Land and land improvements 185,679 63,035 248,714 
Building 8,235,854 778,823 9,014,677 
Fixed equipment 728,027 195,835 923,862 
Moveable equipment 1,320,704 151:584 1,472,288 

Total accumulated depreciation 10,470,264 1,189,277 11,659,541 

Net carrying amount $22,426,505 $ (879,235) $ $21,547,270 
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NOTE I - LONG-TERM DEBT 

COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

The folJowing is a summary of changes in long-tenn debt for the year ended December 31, 2016: 

Balance 
TypeofDebt 01/0]/]6 Additions Deductions 

Governmental activities: 
General Obljgation Unlimited Tax Bonds: 

Refunding Bonds · 2012 
General Obligation Limited Tax Bonds: 

County Courthouse Complex - 2003 
Compensated absences* 

Total governmental activities 
long-tenn debt 

* Shown as net addition/deduction 

$ 6,130,000 

298,000 
168,621 

$ 6,596,621 

$ $ 595,000 

11,000 
I I ,216 

$ $ 617,216 

Debt service requirements on long-tcnn debt at December 31, 2016 are as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
For the Year Ending Bonds/Loan Pa~able 

December 31, PrinciEal Interest 
2017 $ 627,000 $ 205,773 
2018 647,000 183,338 
2019 673,000 158,490 
2020 698,000 132,600 
2021 729,000 104,047 

2022-2026 1,294,000 277,110 
2027-2031 793,000 143,174 
2032-2033 361,000 14,881 

Total $ 5,822,000 $ 1,219,413 

Governmental Activities: 

County Courthouse Complex Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2003 

Balance 
12/31/2016 

$ 5,535,000 

287,000 
157,405 

$ 5,979,405 

Amounts 
Due Within 
One Year 

$ 615,000 

12,000 
39,351 

$ 666,351 

County Courthouse Complex Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2003 consist of general obligation limited tax bonds 
issued in the amoWlt of $400,000 for the purpose of paying part of the costs to acquire, conshuct and equip 
renovations and improvements to the CoWlty Courthouse Complex. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE I - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

TI1ese bonds bear an interest rate of 4.25%, with interest payable on February I, 2004 and semi-annually 
thereafter, provided that the principal payments required to the registered owner shall not exceed the total of 
the principal installments of this bond drawn by the County. Principa) payments are required to be made 
August 1, 2004, and annually thereafter until August I, 2033. 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 

2012 Refunding Bonds consist of general obligation unlimited tax refunding bonds issued in the amount of 
$7,845,000 for the purpose of refunding the Medical Care Facility Bonds, Series 2002, maturing in the years 
2003 through 2022 and the County Courthouse Complex Tax Bonds, Series 2003, maturing in the years 2004 
through 2033. Bond principal and interest requirements will be met by an ad valorem tax levy. 

Compensated Absences: 

Substantially all County employees are entitled to certain vacation and sick pay benefits that accrue and vest 
under various parameters, dependent upon which labor contract the employee is subject to or upon which 
department or fund the employee is within. Compensated absences in the amount of $157,405 are reported 
under the governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position. For governmental activities, compensated 
absences are liquidated by the fund the employee's regular payroll is charged to, and any claims or judgments 
are typically liquidated by the General Fund. 

NOTE J - ROAD COMMISSION LONG-TERM DEBT 

Bond Payable: 

On April 3, 2012, Michigan Transportation Fund Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 in the amount of$1,880,000 
were issued for the purpose of refunding the Michigan Transportation Bonds, Series 2003. Semi-annual 
payments are due on February 1st and August 1st for a term of 20 years with a variable interest rate between 
1.20%-3.25%. February I st payments consist of interest only and August 1 ~t payments consist of principal and 
interest. Final payment is due on August 1, 2032. 

Installment Payable: 

On November 10, 2016, the Road Commission obtained an installment loan for a tandem axle truck in the 
amount of $224,495. Quarterly payments are due February I ot\ May 10t\ August 10th and November 101h 

for a tenn of 3 years with a variable interest rate 3 .4 725%. Final payment is due on November 11, 2018. 
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December 31, 2016 

NOTE J - ROAD COMMISSION LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Operating Leases: 

In 2015, the Iron County Board of Road Commissioners entered into four operating leases for equipment. The 
equipment is two John Deere 770GP Motor Grader Snow Wings and 2 Caterpillar 12M3 Motor Graders. 
Rent expenses for the operating leases for the year ended December 31, 2016 were $85,798. The future 
minimum rental commitments for the non•cancelable equipment operating leases as of December 31, 20 I 6 
are as follows. 

Compensated Absences: 

For the Year Ending 
December31 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 

Total 

$ 85,798 
$ 85,798 
$ 85,798 
$ 354,018 

$ 611,412 

Road commission employment policies provide for vacation benefits to he eamed in varying amounts 
depending on the number of years of service of the employee. The annual vacation benefits earned by each 
employee are credited at the beginning of the year. An employee who is eligible for vacation leave in excess 
of twenty (20) days, may, with the consent of the employer, take pay at the employee's regular rate of pay 
for time in excess of twenty (20) days in·lieu·of vacation leave. 

Employees may carry over a maximwn of ten (10) days vacation into the next year. An employee leaving 
the services of the Road Commission will be paid all unused vacation carried over to January 1st up to a 
maximwn of ten (l 0) days, plus any vacation earned, on a prorated basis to the end of the month of 
separation, in accordance with the vacation policy in effect at this time. 

Road Connnission employment policies provide that each full.time employee shall earn sick leave with pay 
at the rate of eight (8) hours for each month of employment in which the employee is compensated for at 
least eighteen (18) days, with unlimited accumulation. Upon permanent separation from employment, 
employees shall be paid for all of their accumulated sick leave at the employee's prevailing rate of pay up to 
a maximum of ninety (90) days. In the event their balance at time of retirement is over ninety (90) days, all 
accumulated excess of the ninety (90) days will be paid at the rate of fifty percent {50%). The total sick and 
vacation leave amount of $178,437 is recorded in the statement of net position as a liability. 

45 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 
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December 31, 2016 

NOTE J - ROAD COMMISSION LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Other Postemployment Benefits: 

Road Commission has estimated the cost of providing retiree healthcare benefits through an actuarial 
valuation date of January 1, 2015. The Net OPEB Obligation was $1,269,577 as of December 31, 2016. 
See Note P for more information. 

The general long-term debt of the Road Commission may be summarized as follows: 

Amounts 
Balance Balance Due Within 

T:iEe of Debt 1/1/2016 Additions Deductions 12/3 I /2016 One Year 
Bonds payable: 

MTF Refunding Bonds-2012 $ 1,655,000 $ $ 80,000 $ 1,575,000 $ 80,000 
Installment payable: 

20 I 6 Tandem Axle Truck 224,495 27,220 197,275 83,087 
Vested Employee Benefits Payable: 

Vacation Benefits* 21,117 2,261 23,378 5,845 
Sic.k Leave Benefits* 132,881 22,178 155,059 38,765 
Other Postemployment Benefits 944,404 325,173 1,269,577 

Total long-term debt $ 2,753,402 $ 574,)07 $ 107,220 $ 3,220,289 $ 207,696 

* Shown as net addition/deduction 

Debt service requirements on long-tenn debt at December 31, 2016 are as follows: 

County Road Commission 
For the Year Ending Bonds Pa~able Installment Parable 

December31 Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total 

2017 $ 80,000 $ 44,323 $ 124,323 $ 83,087 $ 4,421 $ 87,508 
2018 80,000 43,363 123,363 114,188 2,489 116,677 
2019 85,000 41,723 126,723 
2020 85,000 39,980 124,980 
2021 85,000 38,238 123,238 

2022-2026 480,000 150,238 630,238 
2027-2030 560,000 73,750 633,750 

2032 120,000 3,900 123,900 

Total $ 1,575,000 $ 435,515 $ 2,010,515 $ 197,275 $ 6,910 $ 204,185 
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Decembe1· 31, 2016 

NOTE K-MEDICAL CARE FACILITY LONG-TERM DEBT 

On July 12, 2012, the Facility refinanced its existing debt for the assisted-living project into a 
construction bond held by the Iron County Building Authority. The maximum draw on the note is 
$7,900,000, which was fully drawn. The maturity schedule was set, as the final draw available was made 
in 2014. The bonds have a yield of 3.1 % and mature on August 1, 2022. Principal and interest are due 
semiannually on February 1 and August 1. 

Medical Care Facility has estimated the cost of providing retiree healthcare benefits through an actuarial 
valuation as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2012, respectively. The Net OPEB Obligation was 
$1,283,624 as of December 31, 2016. See Note P for more infonnation. 

Long-tenn debt activity for the year ended December 31, 2016 was as follows: 

1/1/2016 Additions Reductions 12/31/2016 
Due Within 
One Year 

Series 20 I 2 Bonds Payable $ 6,972,223 $ 
===== $ 329,287 $ 6,642,936 $ 340,418 

Debt service requirements on long-tenn debt at December 31, 2016 are as follows: 

Medical Care Facilitl 
For the Year Ending Notes Paxable 

December 31 Principal Interest 

2017 $ 340,418 $ 203,346 
20)8 350,139 192,739 
2019 361,078 181,801 
2020 371,899 170,980 
2021 383,976 158,902 
2022 42835,426 146,907 

Total $ 6,642,936 $ 1,054,675 
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NOTE L - OPERATING TRANSFERS IN AND OUT 

Transfers between governmental and proprietary funds are made to fund various County programs 
operational expenditures and are summarized as follows for the year ended December 31, 2016: 

Transfers Out 

General Maintenance Tax 
T ransfcrs In Fund of Effort Revolving 

Genera I Fund $ $ $ 40,000 

Nonmajor goveinmental funds 322,636 

Discrete component unit 
- Medical Care Facility 300,000 

$322,636 $ 300,000 $ 40,000 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS 

General County 

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Description of Plan and P1an Assets 

Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds Total 

$ 99,165 $ 139,165 

322,636 

300,000 

761 ,801 

$ 99,165 $ 761!801 

The County participates in an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with the Municipal 
Employees' Retirement System (MERS). For purposes of measuring the Net Pension Liability, deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, 
information about the fiduciary net position of the MERS of Michigan and additions to/deductions from 
MERS' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by MERS. For 
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due 
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fafr value. 
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NOTE 1\1 - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

The system provides the following provisions: nonnal retirement, deferred retirement and service retirement 
to plan members and their beneficiaries. The service requirement is computed using credited service at the 
time of termination of membership multiplied by 2.25%, depending on the division, times the final average 
compensation (F AC). The most recent period of which actuarial data was available was for year ended 
December 31, 2015. 

General Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan Description: The County participates in the Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS) of 
Michigan. MERS is an agent multiple-employer, statewide public employee pension plan established by 
the Michigan Legislature under PA 135 of 1945 and administered by a nine member Retirement Board. 
MERS is a nonprofit organization that was granted independence from the State of Michigan pursuant to 
Public Act 220 of 1996, effective August 15, 1996. MERS issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. This report may be obtained by 
accessing the MERS Website at www.mersofinich.com or in writing to MERS at 1134 Municipal Way, 
Lansing, Michigan 48917. 

Benefits Provided--D<;/ined Benefit: The County's defined benefit pension plan provides certain 
retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PA 427 of 1984 established 
and amends the benefit provisions of the participants in MERS. 
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NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Benefits Provided 

Divisions - For the 2015 Valuation 

10-AFSCME I 1-911 
OJ-General 02-Sheriff CrthseEE Dispatchers 

Closed Closed Closed Oeen 

2.25%-80% 2.25%-80% 2.25%-80% 
Benefit Multiplier: max max 2.25%-80% max max 
Normal Retirement Age: 60 60 60 60 
Vesting: 6 years 6 years 6 years 6 years 
Early Retirement (wrreduced): 55/15 55/15 55115 55/15 
Early Retirement (reduced): 50/25 50125 50/25 50/25 
Final Average Compensation: 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years 
Employee Contributions: 0% 0% 0% 0% 
Act 88: Yes Yes Yes Yes 

EmQloyees Covered by Benefit Terms 

20-Sheriff 
& Under-

Sheriff 
Closed 

2.25%-80% 
max 
60 

6 years 
55/15 
50125 

5 years 
0% 
Yes 

At the December 31, 2015 valuation date, the following employees were covered by the benefit tenns: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active employees 

Funding Policy 

61 
17 
16 
94 

The County is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially detennined rate, as established 
by the MERS Retirement Board. The actuarially detennined rate is the estimated amount necessary to 
finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any 
unfunded accrued liability. The County may establish contribution rates to be paid by its covered 
employees. 

The required monthly employer contribution at December 31, 2016 for open divisions is shown as a percent 
of pay contribution and for dosed divisions is shown as a monthly dollar contribution as follows: 

01 - General 
02- Sheriff 
10 - AFSCME Crthse EE 
11 - 911 Dispatchers 
20 - Sheriff & Undersheriff 
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$4,322 
$6,457 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Net Pension Liability 

The County's net pension liability reported at December 31, 2016 was measured as of December 31, 2016, 
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as December 31, 2015. Update procedures were used to roll forward the total pension liability to 
the measurement date. 

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liability in the December 31, 20 I 5 actuarial valuation was 
detennined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 

2.50 percent in the long term 
3.75 percent, average, including inflation 
8.00 percent, net of investment expense, including inflation 

Although no specific price inflation assumptions are needed for the valuation, the 3.75% long-term wage 
inflation assumption would be consistent with a price inflation of2.5%. 

Mortality rates used were based on the RP-2014 Health Annuitant Mortality Table (with rates multiplied 
by 105%), the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables, and the RP-2014 Juvenile Mortality Tables using a 
50% Male and 50% Female blend. For disabled retirees, the regular mortality table is used with a 10-year 
set forward in ages to reflect the higher expected mortality rates of disabled members. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study covering the period from January I, 2009, through December 3 I, 2013. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was detennined using a model method in 
which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return ( expected returns, net of investment and 
administrative expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined 
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset alJocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates 
of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the folJowing table: 

Global Equity 

Global Fixed Income 

Rea) Assets 

Diversifying Strategies 

57.5% 5.02% 

20.0% 2.18% 

12.5% 4.23% 

10.0% 6.56% 
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NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 8.25% for the 2016 
rollforward and will be 8.0% in 2017 and thereafter. The projection of cash flows used to detennine the 
discount rate assumes that employer and employee contributions will be made at the rates agreed upon for 
employees and the actuarially detennined rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the pension 
plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay all projected future benefit payments of 
current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability: 

Increases (Decreases) 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension 
Liability Net Position Liability 

Balances at December 31, 2015 $ 7,965,826 $ 5,258,907 $ 2,706,919 

Service cost 62,655 62,655 
Interest on total pension liability 635,176 635,176 
Changes in benefits 
Difference between expected and actual experience 94,310 94,310 
Changes in assumptions 410,735 410,735 
Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 

296,140 (296,140) 

Net investment income 584,761 (584,761) 
Benefit payments, including employee refunds (596,107) (596,107) 
Administrative expense (11,556) 11,556 
Other changes (46,390) (46,390) 

Net changes 560,379 273,238 287,141 

Balances as of December 31, 2016 $ 8,526,205 $ 5,532,145 $ 2,994,060 
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Decembe1· 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREl\fENT PLANS (continued) 

Sensitivity ~f the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate: The following presents the net pension 
liability of the County, calculated using the discount rate of 8.25%, as well as what the County's net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (7.25%) or !­
percentage-point higher (9.25%) than the current rate: 

Net pension liability at 12/31/16 
Change in net pension liability at 
12/31/16 $ 

$ 

1% Decrease 
(7.25%) 

824,974 

Current Discount 
Rate 

(8.25%) 

$ 2,994,060 

$ 
3,819,034 $ 2,994,060 $ 

1% Increase 
(9.25%) 

(707,829) 
2,286,231 

Pension plan.fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued MERS financial report found at www.mersofinichigan.com. The plan's 
fiduciary net position has been detennined on the same basis used by the plan. The plan uses the economic 
resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Investments are stated at fair value. 
Contribution revenue is recorded as contributions are due pursuant to legal requirements. Benefit payments 
and refunds of employee contributions are recognized as expense when due and payable in accordance with 
the benefit tenns. 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the County recognized pension expense of $414,914. At December 
31, 2016, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date * 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

75,448 $ 

328,588 

183,002 

587,038 

* The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the Net Pension Liability for the year 
ending December 31, 2017. 
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NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

AmoW1ts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recorded in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended December 31: 

Annual Pension Cost 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 

$ 172,927 
172,927 
172,927 
68,257 

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the CoW1ty's contributions totaling $296,028 were made in 
accordance with contribution requirement detennined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as of December 
31, 2014. The employer contribution rate has been detennined based on the entry age normal fwiding 
method. Under the entry age normal cost funding method, the total actuarially detennined contribution 
requirement is equal to the swn of the normal cost plus the payment required to fund the unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability over a period of years. Funding or amortizing the unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
includes a payment toward the liabi1ity plus a payment to reflect the time value of money. The normal cost 
rate is the level percentage-of-pay contribution required each year, with respect to each member, to 
accumulate over their projected working lifetime the reserves needed to meet the cost of earned benefits. 
Significant actuarial assumptions used include a long-term investment yield rate of 7.75 percent and annual 
salary increases of 3.75 percent based on an age-related scale to reflect merit, longevity, and promotional 
salary increases. The unfimded actuarial liability is amortized under option A (level dollar contribution) on a 
closed basis. The remaining amortization period ranges from IO to 24 years for the various divisions that are 
underfunded. 

Defmed Contribution Plan Description - The CoW1ty of Iron participates in a defined contribution plan 
administered by the Municipal Employee's Retirement System (MERS). The retirement plan covers regular 
full-time and part-time employees hired after April 1, 2004. 

For full-time employees, the County agrees to fund 6% of the gross employee earnings per pay period into a 
Section 401(a) defined contribution individual retirement account. To encourage full-time employees to 
participate, the CoW1ty agrees to match individual pre-tax contribution into a section 457 Deferred 
Compensation Program, 50% employer and 50% employee, up to and additional 6% (3% employer and 3% 
employee) for a total of 12% (9% employer and 3% employee). 
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NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

For part-time employees, the County agrees to fund 4% of the gross employee earnings per pay period into a 
Section 401(a) defined contribution individual retirement accoWlt. To encourage part.time employees to 
participate, the County agrees to match individual pre-tax contributions into a Section 457 Deferred 
Compensation Program, 50% employer and 50% employee, up to and additional 6% (3% employer and 3% 
employee) for a total of 10% (7% employer and 3% employee). 

Both full-time and part-time employees have the option of providing additional unmatched pre-tax 
contributions to their individual Section 457 retirement account as authorized by the plan. A vesting schedule 
gives employees 20% vesting per year and at the end of the fifth year employees will be 100% vested on the 
employer's contribution portion. Employees are always 100% vested on the employee contribution portion. 

During the 2016 fiscal year, employer and employee contributions relating to the defined contribution plan 
were $141,626 and $70,662, respectively. 

Forfeiture of non-vested amowits are used to reduce future employer contributions. There were no 
forfeitures in 2016; however, there were forfeiture balances available for use by the Department in the 
amount of$8,773. 

County Road Commission - Component Unit 

Plan Description: The Road Commission participates in the Municipal Employees Retirement System 
(MERS) of Michigan. MERS is an agent multiple-employer, statewide public employee pension plan 
established by the Michigan Legislature under PA 135 of 1945 and administered by a nine member 
Retirement Board. MERS is a nonprofit organization that was granted independence from the State of 
Michigan pursuant to Public Act 220 of 1996, effective August 15, 1996. MERS issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. This 
report may be obtained by accessing the MERS Website at www.mersofmich.com or in writing to MERS 
at 1134 Municipal Way, Lansing, Michigan 48917. 

Benefits Provided--D<;/ined Ben<;/it: The Road Commission's defined benefit pension plan provides 
certain retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PA 427 of 1984 
established and amends the benefit provisions of the participants in MERS. 

55 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Divisions - For the 2015 Valuation 

01-Comm/Sali 
Non-Union IO-Union 

I I-Hourly 
Non-Union 

12-Non-Union after 
I 0/14 & Union after 

IO/II 
Closed 

2.50%-80% 
Benefit Multiplier: max 
Normal Retirement Age: 60 
Vesting: IO years 
Early Retirement (unreduced): 55120 
Early Retirement (reduced): 50/25; 55/15 
Final Average Compensation: 3 years 

2.5% 
COLA for Future Retirees: (non-comp.) 

2.5% 
COLA for Current Retirees: (non-comp.) 
Employee Contributions: 0% 
Act 88: Yes 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

Closed 

2.50%-80% 
max. 
60 

10 years 

50125; 55/15 
5 years 
2.5% 

(non-comp.) 
2.5% 

(non-comp.) 
0% 
Yes 

Closed 

2.50%-80% max 
60 

10 years 
55/20 

50/25; 55115 
3 years 
2.5% 

(non-comp.) 
2.5% 

(non-comp.) 
0% 
Yes 

Open 

I . 70%-no max 
60 

IO years 

50125; 55115 
5 years 

0% 
Yes 

At the December 31, 2015 valuation date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active employees 

48 
2 

17 
67 

Contributions: Article 9, Section 24 of the State of Michigan constitution requires that financial benefits 
arising on account of employee service rendered in each year be funded during that year. Acoordingly, 
MERS retains an independent actuary to determine the annual contribution. The employer is required to 
oontribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially determined rate, as established by the MERS Retirement 
Board. The actuarialJy detennined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amowit to finance any wifunded accrued liability. 
The employer may establish oontribution rates to be paid by its covered employees. 

The required monthly employer contribution at December 31, 2016 for open divisions is shown as a percent 
of pay oontribution and for closed divisions is shown as a monthly dollar oontribution as follows: 

01 -Comm/Sal/Non-Union 
IO-Union 
11 - Hourly Non-Union 
21 -Non-Union after 10/14; Union after 10/11 
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$4,444 
$27,366 

$9,633 
0.76% 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Net Pension Liability 

The Road Commission's net pension liability reported at December 31, 2016 was measured as of December 
31, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as December 31, 2015. Update procedures were used to roll forward the total pension 
liabiJity to the measurement date. 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2015 actuarial vaJuation was 
detennined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 

2.50 percent in the long term 
3.75 percent, average, including inflation 
8.00 percent, net of investment expense, including inflation 

Although no specific price inflation assumptions are needed for the valuation, the 3.75% long-term wage 
inflation assumption would be consistent with a price inflation of2.5%. 

Mortality rates used were based on the RP-2014 Health Annuitant Mortality Table (with rates multiplied 
by 105%), the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables, and the RP-2014 Juvenile Mortality Tables using a 
50% Male and 50% Female blend. For disabled retirees, the regular mortality table is used with a 10-year 
set forward in ages to reflect the higher expected mortality rates of disabled members. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study covering the period from January 1, 2009, through December 31, 2013. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model method 
in which the best.estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return ( expected returns, net of 
investment and administrative expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target 
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in 
the following table: 

Global Equity 

GJobal Fixed Income 

Real Assets 

Diversi 

57 

57.5% 

20.0% 

12.5% 

10.0% 

5.02% 

2.18% 

4.23% 

6.56% 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 8.25% for 2016 and will be 
8.0% in 2017. The projection of cash flows used to detennine the discount rate asswnes that employer 
and employee contributions will be made at the rates agreed upon for employees and the actuarially 
determined rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to pay all projected future benefit payments of cW1·ent active and inactive 
employees. Therefore, the long-tenn expected rate of retwn on pension plan investments was applied to 
a11 periods of projected benefit payments to detennine the total pension liability. 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability: 
Increases (Decreases) 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension 
Liabilitv Net Position Liability 

Balances at December 31, 2015 $ I 1,624,062 $ 4,527.588 $ 7,096,474 

Service cost 87;857 87,857 
Interest on total pension liability 923,580 923,580 
Changes in benefits 
Difference between expected and actual experience 96,319 96,319 
Changes in assumptions 647,163 647,163 
Employer contributions 769,702 (769,702) 
Employee contributions 
Net investment income 501,474 (501,474) 
Benefit payments, including employee refunds (946,161) (946,161) 
Administrative expense (9,907) 9,907 
Other changes (12,132) (12,132) 

Net changes 796,626 315,108 481,518 

Balances as of December 31, 2016 $ 12,420,688 $ 4,842,696 $ 7,577,992 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net 
pension liability of the Road Commission, calculated using the discount rate of 8.25%, as well as what the 
Road Commission's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (7 .25%) or 1-pcrcentage-point higher (9 .25%) than the current rate: 

Net pension liability at 12/31 /16 
Change in net pension liability at 
12/31/16 

1% Decrease 
(7.25%) 

$ 1,203,741 
$ 8,781,733 
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Current 
Discount Rate 

(8.25%) 

$ 7,577,992 

1% Increase 
(9.25%) 

$ 7,577,992 $ 6,543,085 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued MERS financial report. 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Road Commission recognized pension expense of $1,077,492. 
At December 31, 2016, the Road Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date * 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

48,160 
323,582 

160,009 

531,751 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

$ 

$ 

* The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date will he recognized as a reduction in the Net Pension Liability for the year 
ending December 31, 2017. 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recorded in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended December 31: 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
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$ 434,120 
62,379 
62,379 

(27,127) 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

District Health Department - Component unit 

Description of Plan and Plan Assets 

The Department is in an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with the Municipal 
Employees' Retirement System (MERS). The system provides the following provisions: nonnal 
retirement, deferred retirement and service retirement to plan members and their beneficiaries. The 
service requirement is computed using credited service at the time of tennination of membership 
multiplied by the sum of 2.50% times the five year final compensation (F AC) for aJI divisions. The most 
recent period of which actuarial data was available was for year ended December 31, 2015. 

General Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan Description. The employer's defined benefit pension plan provides certain retirement, disability and 
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The employer participates in the Municipal Employees 
Retirement System (MERS) of Michigan. MERS is an agent multiple-employer, statewide public 
employee pension plan established by the Michigan Legislature under PubJic Act 135 of 1945 and 
administered by a nine member Retirement Board. MERS issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary infonnation. This report may be obtained 
accessing the MERS website at www.mersofinich.com. 

Divisions - Forthe 2015 Valuation 

01-MNA 
Employee 10-AFSCME 11-Non-Union 13-Med Director 

OEen Closed Closed Closed 

2.50%-80% 2.50%-80% 
Benefit Multiplier: max max 2.50%-80% max 2.50%-80% max 
Normal Retirement Age: 60 60 60 60 
Vesting: 8 years 8 years 8 years 8 years 
Early Retirement (unreduced): 
Early Retirement (reduced): 50/25; 55115 50/25; 55/15 50125; 55/15 50/25; 55/15 
Final Average Compensation: 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years 
Employee Contributions: 1% 1% 1% 1% 
Act 88: Yes Yes Yes Yes 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

At the December 31, 2015 valuation date, the following employees were covered by the benefit tenns: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active employees 

Funding Policy 

47 
13 
21 
81 

The Deparbnent is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially determined rate, as 
established by the MERS Retirement Board. The actuarially detennined rate is the estimated amount 
necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to 
finance any unfunded accrued liability. The Department may establish contribution rates to be paid by its 
covered employees. 

The required monthly employer contribution at December 31, 2016 for open divisions is shown as a percent 
of pay contribution and for closed divisions is shown as a monthly dollar contribution as follows: 

01 - MNA Employee 
10-AFSCME 

23.34% 
$4,418 

$17,942 
$54 

11 - Non Union 
13 - Med Director 

Net Pension Liability 

The Department's net pension liability reported at December 31, 2016 was measured as of December 31, 
2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as December 31, 2015. Update procedures were used to roll forward the total pension liability to 
the measurement date. 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation was 
detennined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 

2.50 percent in the long term 
3.75 percent, average, including inflation 
8.00 percent, net of investment expense, including inflation 

Although no specific price inflation assumptions are needed for the valuation, the 3.75% long·tenn wage 
inflation assumption would be consistent with a price inflation of2.5%. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MJCHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Mortality rates used were based on the RP-2014 Health Annuitant Mortality Table (with rates multiplied 
by 105%), the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables, and the RP-2014 Juvenile Mortality Tables using a 
50% Male and 50% Female blend. For disabled retirees, the regular mortality table is used with a 10-year 
set forward in ages to reflect the higher expected mortality rates of disabled members. 

The actuarial asswnptions used in the December 31, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study covering the period from January 1, 2009, through December 31, 2013. 

The long-tenn expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model method 
in which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return ( expected returns, net of 
investment and administrative expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target 
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in 
the following table: 

Globa1 Equity 57.5% 5.02% 

Global Fixed Income 20.0% 2.18% 
Real Assets 12.5% 4.23% 
Diversifying Strategies 10.0% 6.56% 

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 8.25% for the 2016 
roll forward and will be 8.0% in 2017 and thereafter. The projection of cash flows used to determine the 
discount rate assumes that employer and employee contributions will be made at the rates agreed upon for 
employees and the actuarially determined rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the pension 
plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay all projected future benefit payments of 
current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the tota1 pension 
liability. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability: 

Increases (Decreases) 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension 
Liability Net Position Liability 

Balances at December 31, 2015 $ 8.579,150 $ 5,319,838 $ 3,259,312 

Service cost 90,130 90,130 
Interest on total pension liability 687,635 687,635 
Changes in benefits 
Difference between expected and actual experience 152,328 152,328 
Changes in assumptions 434,793 434,793 
Employer contributions 469,455 (469,455) 
Employee contributions 9,517 (9,517) 
Net investment income 603,003 (603,003) 
Benefit paymen~, including employee refunds (578,502) (578,502) 
Administrative expense (11,898) 11,898 
Other changes 14,605 14,605 

Net changes 800,989 491,575 309,414 

Balances as of December 31, 2016 $ 9,380,139 $ 5,811,413 $ 3,568,726 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net 
pension liability of the Department, calculated using the discount rate of 8.25% , as well as what the 
Department's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage­
point lower (7.25%) or I-percentage-point higher (9.25%) than the current rate: 

Net pension liability at 12/31/16 
Change in net pension liability at 
12/31/16 

1% Decrease 
(7.25%) 

$ 951,050 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(8.25%) 

$ 3,568,726 

1% Increase 
(9.25%) 

$ (819,202) 
$ 4,519,776 $ 3,568,726 $ 2,749,524 
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COUNT\' OF IRON. MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Decembe1· 31, 2016 

NOTE M- RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued MERS financial report. 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Department recognized pension expense of $724,047. At 
December 31, 2016, the Department reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Difference bet ween expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date* 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

76,164 
217,397 

176,276 

469,837 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

$ 

$ 

* The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the Net Pension Liability for the year 
ending December 31, 201 7. 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recorded in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended December 31 : 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
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$ 363,567 
70,006 
70,006 

(33,743) 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE M- RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Annual Pension Cost 

During the year ended December 31 , 2016, the Department's contributions totaling $469,455 were made 
in accordance with contribution requirement determined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as of 
December 31, 2014. The employer contribution rate has been determined based on the entry age nonnal 
funding method. Under the entry age normal cost funding method, the total employer contribution is 
comprised of the normal cost plus the level annual percentage of payroll payment required to norrna] cost 
is, for each employee, the level percentage of payroll contribution (from entry age to retirement) required 
to accumulate sufficient assets at the member's retirement to pay for his projected benefit. Significant 
actuarial assumptions used include a long-term investment yield rate of 7.75 percent and annual salary 
increases of 3.75 percent based on an age-related scale to reflect merit, longevity, and promotional salary 
increases. The unfunded actuarial liability is amortized as a level percent of payroll on a closed basis. 
The remaining amortization period is between 5 and 24 years for all divisions that are underfunded. 

Defined Contribution Plan Description - Effective January 1, 2006, the Dickinson-Iron District Health 
Department adopted a Defined Contribution Plan administered by the Municipal Employees Retirement 
System (MERS). AFSCME (Division #10) and Non-Union (Division #11) employees and employees 
eligible for MERS membership hired after January 1, 2006, or who have previously not participated in 
MERS are eligible to participate in the plan. Normal retirement age under the plan shall be age 60 (not to 
exceed age 65). 

Defined contribution plan contribution provisions are as follows: 

Employer Contributions 
5% 
6% 
7% 

Required 
Employee Contributions 

0% 
1% 
2% 

Defined contribution plan vesting provisions are as follows: 

Years of Service 
Completed 

0 
1 
2 
3 
4 

5 or more 

Specified Vesting 
Requirements 

0% 
20% 
40% 
60% 
80% 
100% 

During the 2016 fiscal year, employer and employee contributions relating to the defined contribution plan 
were $25,808 and $7,189, respectively. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Forfeiture of non-vested amounts are used to reduce future employer contributions. There were no 
forfeitw-es in 2016; however, there were forfeitw-e balances available for use by the Department in the 
amount of$3,031. 

Medical Care Facility - Component Unit 

Plan Description: The Medical Care Facility participates in the Municipal Employees Retirement System 
(MERS) of Michigan. MERS is an agent multiple-employer, statewide public employee pension plan 
established by the Michigan Legislature under PA 135 of 1945 and administered by a nine member 
Retirement Board. MERS is a nonprofit organization that was granted independence from the State of 
Michigan pursuant to Public Act 220 of 1996, effective August 15, 1996. MERS issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. This 
report may be obtained by accessing the MERS Website at www.mersofmich.com or in writing to MERS 
at 1134 Municipal Way, Lansing, Michigan 48917. 

Benefits Provided--Defined Benefit: The Medical Care Facility's defined benefit pension plan provides 
certain retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PA 427 of 1984 
established and amends the benefit provisions of the participants in MERS. 

Divisions - For the 2015 Valuation 

04-ASFME 40-Admin 41-SEIU 42-RN 43-MCF 
< 25 yrs SVC Staff & RN Grp Union Employees Crystal Manor 

Oeen Oeen Oeen Qeen Closed 

< 25 years: 1. 70%-

no max; >25 years: 
Benefit Multiplier: 2.00%-no max 2.5%-80% max 2.25%-80% max 2.25%-80% max 1. 70%-no max 
Normal Retirement Age: 60 60 60 60 60 
Vesting: IO years 6 years IO years IO years 10 years 
Early Retirement (unreduced): 55125 55125 55125 55125 55125 
Early Retirement (reduced): 50/25; 55/15 50/25; 55/15 50/25; 55/15 50/25; 55/15 50/25;55/15 
Final Average Compensation: 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years 
COLA for Future Retirees: 0.00% 2.50% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
Employee Contributions: 5.65% 3.00% 10.62% 3.00% 4.94% 
Act 88: Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Em12lo}'.ees Covered by Benefit Terms 

At the December 31, 2015 valuation date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active employees 
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109 
27 

291 
427 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Contn·butions: Article 9, Section 24 of the State of Michigan constitution requires that financial benefits 
arising on account of employee service rendered in each year be funded during that year. Accordingly, 
MERS retains an independent actuary to detennine the annual contribution. The employer is required to 
contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially determined rate, as established by the MERS Retirement 
Board. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any wifunded accrued liability. 
The employer may establish contribution rates to be paid by its covered employees. For the year ended 
December 31, 2016, the Medical Care Facility's active employee contribution ranged from 3.00% to 6.94% 
and the Facility's average contribution ranged from 4.25% to 19.73% of annual payroll. 

The Medical Care Facility's required and actual contributions to the plan for the year ended December 31, 
2016 were $994,736. 

Net Pension Liability 

The Medical Care Facility's net pension liability reported at December 31, 2016 was determined using a 
measure of the total pension liability and the pension net position as of December 31, 2015. The 
December 31, 2015, total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of that 
date. 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 

2.50 percent in the long term 
3.75 percent, average, including inflation 
8.00 percent, net of investment expense, including inflation 

Although no specific price inflation assumptions are needed for the valuation, the 3.75% long-term wage 
inflation assumption would be consistent with a price inflation of 2.5%. 

Mortality rates used were based on the RP-2014 Health Annuitant Mortality Table (with rates multiplied 
by 105%), the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables, and the RP-2014 Juvenile Mortality Tables using a 
50% Male and 50% Female blend. For disabled retirees, the regular mortality table is used with a 10-year 
set forward in ages to reflect the higher expected mortality rates of disabled members. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study covering the period from January 1, 2009, through December 31, 2013. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model method 
in which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return ( expected returns, net of 
investment and administrative expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-terrn expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target 
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in 
the following table: 

Global Equity 

Global Fixed Income 

Real Assets 

57.5% 

20.0% 

12.5% 

10.0% 

5.02% 

2.18% 

4.23% 

6.56% 

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 8.00% for 2015. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that employer and employee 
contributions will be made at the rates agreed upon for employees and the actuarially determined rates for 
employers. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to pay all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, 
the long-tenn expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability: 

Increases (Decreases) 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension 
Liability Net Position Liability 

Balances at December 31, 2015 $ 26,068,387 $ 20,565,689 $ 5,502,698 

Service cost 941,341 941,341 
Interest on total pension liability 2,293,670 2,293,670 
Changes in benefits (131,532) (131,532) 
Difference between expected and actual expe,ience 493,921 493,921 
Changes in assumptions 1,468,177 1,468,177 
Employer contributions 1,017,632 (1,017,632) 
Employee contributions 449,754 (449,754) 
Net investment income (318,924) 318,924 
Benefit payments, including employee refunds (986,107) (986,107) 
Administrative expense 
Other changes 

(45,726) 45,726 

Net changes 4,079,470 116,629 3,962,841 

Balances as of December 31, 2016 $ 30,147,857 $ 20,682,318 $ 9,465,539 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net 
pension liability of the Medical Care Facility, calculated using the discount rate of 8.00%, as well as what 
the Medical Care Facility's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
1-percentage-point lower (7.00%) or I-percentage-point higher (9.00%) than the cml'ent rate: 

Net pension liability at 12/31 /16 
Change in net pension liability at 
12/31/16 

1% Decrease 
(7.00%) 

$ 3,952,674 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(8.00%) 

$ 9,465,539 

1% Increase 
(9.00%) 

$ (3,297,811) 
$ 13,418,213 $ 9,465,539 $ 6,167,728 

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued MERS financial repo1t. 
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Decembe1· 31, 2016 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Medical Care Facility recognized pension expense of 
$1,813,045. At December 31, 2016, the Facility reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date * 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

407,759 
1,207,000 

),849,383 
994,736 

4,458,878 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

* The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the Net Pension Liability for the year 
ending December 31, 20 J 7. 

Amounts reported as def erred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recorded in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended December 31 : 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

Thereafter 

$ 
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828,247 
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133,164 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE N - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The County participates in a number of Federal and State assisted grant programs, principal of which are 
the Friend of Cowt and Prosecuting Attorney Cooperative Reimbursement programs, which are subject to 
financial and compliance audits. The disbursement of funds received under these programs generally 
requires compliance with tenns and conditions specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by 
the grantor agencies. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting 
agencies cannot be determined at this time although the County expects such amounts if any, to be 
immaterial. 

The Dickinson-Iron District Health Department is at risk of potentially being required to payback cost­
based reimbursement payments from the State for Medicaid, determinable by the Michigan Department of 
Health and Human Services (MDHHS). The amount, if any, of potential payback cost-based 
reimbursement payments cannot be detennined at this time although the County expects such amounts if 
any, to be immaterial. 

NOTE O - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The County of Iron participates as a member in the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority. The 
Authority is a mW1icipal self-insurance entity operating pursuant to the State of Michigan Public Act 138 of 
1982. The purpose of the Authority is to administer a risk management fund, which provides members with 
loss protection for general and auto liability, motor vehicle physical damage, and property. 

The Authority has entered into reinsurance agreements providing for loss coverage in excess of the amounts 
to be retained by the Authority and individual members. An individual member's maximum retention on 
general liability and auto liability is $100,000 per person and $250,000 per occurrence. The limits on 
vehicle physical damage are $1,500,000. The retention limits for property coverage are subject to a $250 
deductible. Some members have individual retention levels different than the ones previously stated. 

The member must satisfy all deductibles before any payments are made from the member's self-insured 
retention or by MMRMA. 

All costs including damages and allocated loss adjustment expenses are on an occurrence basis and must be 
paid first from the member's self-insured retention. The member's self-insured retention and deductibles 
must be satisfied fully before MMRMA will be responsible for any payments. The most MMRMA will 
pay is the difference between the member's self-insured retention and the Limits of Coverage. 

Iron County agrees to maintain, at all times, on accoW1t with MMRMA, sufficient funds to pay its self­
insured retention obligations. The member agrees to abide by all MMRMA rules, regulations, and 
administrative procedures pertaining to the member's self-insured retention. 

At December 3 J, 2016, the County had no outstanding claims, which exceeded the plan's limits and there 
has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage over the past three years. 

71 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE P-POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

Iron County Road Commission 

Plan Description - The Iron County Road Commission Retiree Medical Plan is a single employer plan 
administered by Iron County Road Commission. The Plan provides post-employment health care benefits and 
life insurance benefits, in accordance with the provision of Article 49, Section 3, and Article 50, Section 2 of 
the union agreement for all retirees who were hired by the Road Commission, and retire under the provided 
Michigan Municipal Employees' Retirement System. The post-employment health care benefit provides that 
the Road Commission will continue to pay the monthly hospitalization insurance plan premium for the retiree 
only, without the specific drug and dental program, provided he/she makes application for the Medicare card, 
prior to the effective date of Medicare coverage. Toe post-employment life insurance benefit provides that 
the Road Commission will pay for $8,000 of tenn life insurance coverage for each retiree hired before 
September 13, 2011. Currently, 26 retirees are eligible for these post-employment benefits. The Plan does not 
issue a stand alone financial report. 

Funding Policy - As of December 31, 2016, the Road Commission has not established a trust to fund the 
OPEB obligation. The Road Commission's policy is to finance these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. 
Actively employed individuals do not contribute to the plan prior to retirement. During the year 2D16, 
expenditures of $1 96,093 were recognized for post-employment health care benefits, and $11 ,932 for life 
insurance benefits, for total contributions in the amount of$208,025. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The Road Commission's annual OPEB cost (expense) is 
calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially 
detennined in accordance with the parameters of GASBS No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding 
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the 
components of the Road Commission's annual OPEB cost, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and 
changes in the Road Commission's annual net OPEB obligation to the Retiree Medical Plan for the years 
ended December 31, 2016, 20 J 5, and 2014: 

2014 2015 2016 
Annual Required Contribution $ 31 8,021 $ 583,126 $ 646,180 
Amount Contributed 

Payments of Current Premiums (196,672) (225,763~ (208,025) 

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 121,349 357,363 438,155 

Adjustment for Interest and Amortizalion 23,982 26,129 37,776 

Adjustment to ARC (34,689) (92,325) (150,758) 

OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year 542,595 653,237 944,404 

OPEB Obligation - End of Year $ 653,237 $ 944,404 $ 1 J,69,577 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE P - POST ·RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

The Road Commission's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and 
the net OPEB obligation for fiscal year 2016 is as follows: 

Annual OPEB Costs 

Percentage Contributed 

Net OPEB Obligation 

2014 
$ 307,314 

64.0% 

$ 653,237 

2015 

$ 516,930 

43.7% 
$ 944,404 

2016 
$ 533,198 

39.0% 
$ 1,269,577 

Funded Status and Funding Progress - As of January 1, 2015, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was 
$4,011,437, all of which was unfunded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by 
the plan) was unavailable, and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll was 
unavailable. 

Actuarial UAALasa 
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Underfunded Percent of 
Valuation Value of Liability (Overfunded) Funded Covered Covered 

Date Assets (AAL) AAL(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

1/1/2009 $ $ 5,471,703 $ 5,471,703 0.0% NIA NIA 
1/1/2012 4,544,508 4,544,508 0.0% NIA NIA 
111/2015 4,011,437 4,011,437 0.0% NIA NIA 

Actuarial valuation of an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts detennined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject 
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information 
following these notes, present multi year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets 
is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based 
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the 
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit 
costs between the employer and the plan member to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions 
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in acmarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-tenn perspective of the calculations. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE P- POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

In the January 1, 2015 actuarial valuation, the alternative method under GASB Statement No. 45 was 
used: 

Actuarial Cost Method: 
Amortization Method: 
Remaining Amortization Period: 
Asset Va]uation Method: 

Entry Age Nonna} (level percent) 
Level percent, closed 
8 years ( average future service) 
Not applicable 

The actuarial assumptions include a discount rate of 4%, turnover rates ranging from . 75% to 5% based 
on age, retirement rates ranging from 5% to 100% based on age, and medical inflation rates of 8.0% 
graded down 0.5% per year to an ultimate rate of 5.0% for pre-65 and 5.0% in all years for post-65. 

Iron County Medical Care Facility 

Plan Description - The Facility participates in a defined benefit postretirement plan sponsored by Iron 
County that provides postretirement medical benefits to retirees. Substantially all employees may become 
eligible for the benefits if they reach nonnal retirement age while working at the Facility. The 
postemployment obligation is expected to be paid from the Facility's General Fund. The Facility has no 
obligation to make contributions in advance until the premiums are due for payment (in other words, this 
may be financed on a pay-as-you-go basis). 

Funding Progress - For the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, the Facility has estimated 
the cost of providing retiree healthcare benefits through actuarial valuations as of December 31, 2014. 
The valuation computes an annual required contribution, which represents a level of funding that, if paid 
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial 
liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years. This valuation's computed contributions and actual 
funding are swnmarized as follows for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014: 

2014 2015 2016 
Annual Required Contribution $ 351,529 $ 309,993 $ 322,393 
Amount Contributed 

Payments of Current Premiums (124,938) (112,922) (184,949) 

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 226,591 197,071 137,444 

Adjustment for Interest and Amortization 25,616 38,388 46,526 

Adjustment to ARC (25,616) (38,388) (46,526) 

OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year 722,518 949,109 1,146,180 

OPEB Obligation - End of Year $ 949,109 $ 1,146,180 $ 1,283,624 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTE P - POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Actuarial vaJuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value 
of reported amounts and assumptions about the probabi1ity of occurrence of events far into the future. 
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trends. Amounts 
detennined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are 
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are 
made about the future. 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of 
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and the plan 
members at that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to 
reduce the effects of short term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, 
consistent with the Jong-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuations, the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial 
assumptions include a 4.0% investment rate ofreturn and a healthcare cost trend rate of9.0% to 4.0% for the 
medicaVdrug component initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 4.0% over 16 years and 4.0% 
for the dental and vision component. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) is being amortized as 
a level percentage of payroll if the divisions are open to new hires and as a level dollar if the divisions are 
closed to new hires. Amortization is over a closed 30-year period. 

The table below is a summary of the UAAL from the actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2014 and 2012: 

Fiscal Year End 
2014 2015 2016 

Actuarial valuation date 12/31/2012 12/31/2014 12/31/2014 
Annual pension cost (APC) $ 351,529 $ 309,993 $ 322,393 
Percent of APC contributed 36% 36% 57% 
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 4,524,092 $ 4,917,963 $ 4,917,963 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liabiJity (UAAL) $ 4,524,092 $ 4,917,963 $ 4,917,963 

NOTE Q - RESTRICTED NET POSITION 

Total net position restricted by enabling legislation amounted to $763,993 for governmental activities and $0 
for business-type activities. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016 

NOTES - FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 

In August 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. This statement will 
require governments to disclose in their fmancial statements information related to tax abatement 
agreements. Tax abatements are widely used by state and local governments, particularly to encourage 
economic development. For financial reporting purposes, thls Statement defines a tax abatement as 
resulting from an agreement between a government and an individual or entity in which the government 
promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity pTomises to subsequently take a specific 
action that contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. 
This Statement requires disclosure of tax abatement information about (1) a reporting government's own 
tax abatement agreements and (2) those that are entered into by other governments and that reduce the 
reporting government's tax revenues. The County is currently evaluating the impact this standard wilJ 
have on the financial statements when adopted during the 2017 fiscal year. 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued two new pronouncements in June 2015, 
GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans, and GASB Statement 
No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Bene.fits 0th.er than Pensions, which 
will enhance the note disclosures and schedules of required supplementary information for Other 
Postemployment Benefit Plans (OPEB). GASB Statement No. 74 will provide information about 
measures of net OPEB liabilities and an analysis of why those liabilities change from year to year. 
GASB Statement No. 75 establishes standards for governmental employer reco1:,,rnition, measurement, 
and presentation of information about OPEB plans. For defined benefit OPEB, this Statement identifies 
the methods and assumptions that are required to be used to project benefit payments, discount projected 
benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee 
service. GASB Statement No. 74 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016 and 
GASB Statement No. 75 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. The Road 
Commission and Medical Care Facility are currently evaluating the impact these standards will have on 
the fmancial statements when adopted. 

NOTES - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Effective February 28, 2017, the County dissolved the Economic Development Corporation. The County 
contracted for services with the Iron County Chamber of Commerce to be administered under the name Iron 
County Economic Chamber Alliance. The Alliance will be responsible for insuring the repayment of the 
current outstanding economic development loans. The loan payments and interest will be remitted to the 
County. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, .MICHIGAN 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

Actual Amounts, Variance with 
Budieled Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Final Budget-

Ori&inal Final (Stie:NoteA} Positive {N~ative} 
REVENUES: 
Taxes $ 3,168,878 $ 3,168,878 s 3).07,277 $ 38,399 
License and permits 2,700 2,700 8,176 5,476 
Federal sourc~ 515,731 515,731 511,440 (4,291) 
State SOUfCel; 1,015,855 1,027,962 1,166,069 138,107 
Charges for services 495,452 477,987 440,879 (37,108) 
Interest and rentals 13,000 13,000 6,844 (6,156) 
Other 122,591 122,591 81.002 {41.589) 

Total revenues 5,3342207 5,328,849 5,421,687 92,838 

EXPENDITURES: 
Legislative; 

Board of commissioncn; 246,359 246,359 171,124 75,235 
Judicial system: 

Trial coun 776,545 771,353 785,319 (13,966) 
Friend of court 154,604 154,604 151,615 2,989 
Jury commission 293 293 93 200 

General govenunenc: 
Elections 17,922 17,922 22,2IO (4,288) 
Couniy administrator 169,455 166,223 134,450 31,773 
Clerk 198,885 198,885 181,816 17,069 
Equalization 137,1!52 137,852 140,681 (2,829) 
Prosecuting attorney 244,805 260,750 256,796 3,954 
Register of deeds 113,487 113,487 114,083 (596) 
Insurance and bonds 182,100 182,100 165,202 16,898 
General county 515,067 507,067 586,549 (79,482) 
Microfihn project 1,464 1,464 1,090 374 
Treasurer 189,883 189,883 180,955 8,928 
Courthouse and grounds 244,101 220,401 188,043 32,358 
Remonumentation 85,907 53,149 52,498 651 
Drain commissioner 11,076 11,076 7,522 3,554 

Public safety: 
Sheri 11'8 administration 781,470 770,870 688,497 82,373 
Roc1d patrol 90,536 90,036 83,146 6,890 
Community work van 24,501 24,501 22,963 1,538 
Marine patrol 2,650 2,650 6,247 (3,597) 
Snowmobile 3,600 3,600 1,244 2,356 
ORV 9,115 5,000 4,411 589 
Jail 784,872 795,472 810,006 (14,534) 
Mine inspector l0,063 10,063 9,523 540 

Cultural and recreation: 
Parks & recreation 1,100 1,100 475 625 
Cooperative extension services 457 (457) 

Health and welfare: 
Medical examiner 22,400 22,400 52,208 (29,808) 
V ctcran's burial 10,690 10,690 5,880 4,810 

Capital outlay: 5,000 14,203 211,257 (197,054) 
Other: 

Appropriations 128,138 168,893 269,729 {!00,836) 
Total expenditures 5,163,940 5,152,346 5,306,089 (153,743) 

Excess revenues (expenditures) 170,267 176,503 I 15,598 (60,905) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Tran8fer in 147,469 147,469 139,165 (8,304) 
Transfer out !3172736} (323,971) (322,636} 1,335 

Total other financing sources (uses) (170,267) (176,502} {183,471} (6,969) 
Net changes in fund balances I (67,873} $ (67,874) 

Fund balances - beginning 2,344,919 2,344,919 2,344,919 
Fund balances - ending s 2,344,919 $ 2,344,920 $ 2,277,046 
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COUNTY OF IRONJ MICHIGAN 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN'D 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT - MEDICARE 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

Variance with 
Actual Amounts, Final Budget-

Bud~eted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Positive/ 
Original Final (See Note A) (Negative) 

REVENUES: 
Taxes $ 744,766 $ 744,766 $ 747,107 $ 2,341 
State sources 1,258 1,258 
Interest and rentals 2,000 2,000 2,044 44 
Other 352,412 352,412 {352,412) 

Total revenues l,099,178 1,099,178 750,409 (348,769) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Health and welfare 799,178 799,178 399,286 399,892 
Appropriations 300,000 300,000 300,000 

Total expenditures 1,099,178 1,099,178 699,286 399,892 

Excess revenues (expenditures) 51,123 $ 51,123 

Fund balances - beginning 302,273 302,273 302,273 

Fund balances - ending $ 302,273 $ 302,273 $ 353,396 
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COUNTY OF IRONl MICHIGAN 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
YOUTH CAMP 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

Variance with 
Actual Amounts, Final Budget-

Bud~eted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Positive/ 
Original Final (See Note A) (Negative} 

REVENUES: 
Taxes $ 243,300 $ 243,300 $ 248,706 $ 5,406 
Federal sources 1,200 1,200 1,139 (61) 
State sources 429 429 
Charges for services 194,300 194,300 204,102 9,802 
Interest and rentals 500 500 536 36 
Other 42,676 42,676 385 (42,291) 

Total revenues 481,976 481,976 455,297 (26,679) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Cultural and recreation 476,976 476,976 437,120 39,856 
Capital outlay 5,000 5,000 28,989 (23,989) 

Total expenditures 481,976 481,976 466,109 15,867 

Excess revenues (expenditures) (10,812) $ (10,812) 

Fund balances - beginning 118,427 118,427 118,427 

Fund balances - ending $ 1 I 8,427 $ 118,427 $ 107,615 
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COUNTY OF IRON2 MICHIGAN 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDJTURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
20J2 REFUNDING BOND DEBT FUND 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

Variance with 
Actual Amounts, final Budget-

Bud~eted Amounts (Budgetary Basis) Positive/ 
Original FinaJ (See Note A) (Ne&ative) 

REVENUES: 
Taxes $ 822,448 $ 822,448 $ 826,916 $ 4,468 
Jnterest and rentals 200 200 122 (78) 
Other 33,692 33,692 1,380 (32,312) 

Total revenues 856,340 856,340 828,418 (27,922) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Debt service: 

Principal 595,000 595,000 595,000 
Interest 211,725 211,725 211,725 

Other 49,615 49,615 200 49,415 

Total expenditures 856,340 856,340 806,925 49,415 

Excess revenues (expenditures) 21,493 21,493 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfer in 
Transfer out 

Total other financing souces (uses) 

Net changes in fund balance 21,493 $ 21,493 

Fund balances - beginning 42,079 42,079 42,079 

Fund balances · ending $ 42,079 $ 42,079 $ 63,572 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT SYSTEMS 
SCHEDULE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
(Schedule is prepared prospectively upon implementation of GASB 68) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

Total pension liability 
Service cost 
Interest 
Changes in benefits 
Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 

GENERAL COUNTY 

Benefit payments, including refund of member contributions 
Other 

$ 

2016 

62,655 
635,176 

94,310 
410,735 

(596,107) 
(46,390) 

560,379 

7,965,826 

$ 

2015 

68,015 
609,763 

(594,309) 
(2,833) 

80,636 

7,885,190 

Net change in total pension liability 

Total pension liability - beginning 

Total pension liability - ending 

Piao fiduciary net position 

$ 8,526,205 =$======:7 '=:96=5=,8=26=· 

Contributions . employer 
Contributions · employee 
Net investment income 
Benefit payments, including refw1ds of member contributions 
Administrative expense 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 

Plan fiduciary net position · ending 

County's net pension liability - ending 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the totaJ pension liability 

Covered employee payroll 

Count.y's net pension liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expenses 

81 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

296,140 $ 

584,761 
(596,107) 
(11,556) 

273,238 

5,258,907 

5,532,145 

2,994,060 

35% 

693,264 

432% 

11% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

253,110 

(Rl,936) 
(594,309) 
(12,182) 

(435,317) 

5,694,224 

5,258,907 

2,706,919 

34% 

744,458 

364% 

·2% 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT SYSTEMS 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

(Schedule is prepared prospectively upon implementation of GASB 68) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

GENERAL COUNTY 

Actuarially detennined contribution 

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Covered employee payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 

Notes to Schedule: 

Actuarially detennined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31, two years 
prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported. 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization method 

Remaining amortization period 

Asset valuation method 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

Entry age 

Option A, Level Dollar Contribution, Closed 

10.24 years 

5 years smoothed value 

2.5% in the long term 

3. 75%, average, including inflation 

8.00% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2016 2015 

296,028 $ 253,110 

296,028 253,J 10 

$ 

693,264 $ 744,458 

43% 34% 

Retirement age Age 60. In the 2014 actuarial valuation, expected retirement ages of general employees 
were adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience. 

Mortality Assumptions were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Tables (with rate 
multiplied by 105%), the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables, and the RP-2014 
Juvenile Mortality Tables using a 50% male and 50% female blend. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT SYSTEMS 
SCHEDULE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

(Schedule is prepared prospectively upon implementation of GASB 68) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION-COMPONENT UNIT 

Total pension liability 
Service cost 
Interest 
Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 
Benefit payments, including refund of member contributions 
Other 

Net change in total pension liability 

Total pension liability - beginning 

Total pension liability - ending 

Plan fiduciary net position 
Contnbutions - employer 
Contributions - employee 
Net investment income 
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions 
Administrative expense 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 

Plan fiduciary net position - ending 

Commission's net pension liability~ ending 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 

Covered - employee payroll 

Commission's net pension liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net ot· investment expense 

83 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2016 

87,857 
923,580 

96,319 
647,163 

(946,161) 
(12,131) 

796,627 

I l ,624,062 

12,420,6ll9 

769,702 

501,474 
(946,161) 

(9,907) 

315,108 

4,527,589 

4,842,697 

7,577,992 

39% 

830,390 

913% 

11% 

$ 

s 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2015 

81,979 
892,034 

(956,535) 
18,875 

36,353 

11,587,709 

11,624,062 

715,164 

(69,679) 
(956,535) 

(10,334) 

(321,384) 

4,848,973 

4,527,589 

7,096,473 

39% 

785,115 

904% 

-2% 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT SYSTEMS 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

(Schedule is prepared prospectively upon implementation of GASB 68) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION-COMPONENT UNIT 

Actuarially detennined contribution 

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Covered employee payrol1 

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 

Notes to Schedule: 

Actuarially detennined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31, two years 
prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported. 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization method 

Remaining amortization period 

Asset valuation method 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

Entry age 

Option A, Level Dollar Contribution, Closed 

24 years 

5 years smoothed value 

2.5% in the long term 

3.75%, average, including inflation 

8.00% 

$ 

$ 

s 

2016 

499,702 

769,702 

$ 

2015 

475,164 

715,164 

(270,000) =$========(~24=0=,0=00=) 

830,390 $ 785,115 

93% 91% 

Retirement age Age 60. Jn the 2014 actuarial valuation, expected retirement ages of general employees 
were adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience. 

Mortality Assumptions were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Tables (with rate 
multiplied by 105%), the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables, and the RP-2014 
Juvenile Mortality Tables using a 50% male and 50% female blend. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT SYSTEMS 
SCHEDULE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

(Schedule is prepared prospectively upon implementation of GASB 68) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

DISTRICT HEAL TH DEPARTMENT-COMPONENT UNIT 

2016 
Total pension liability 

Service cost s 90,130 
Interest 687,635 
Changes in bent:fits 
Ditforence between expected and actual experience 152,328 
Changes in assumptions 434,793 
Benefit paymtnts, including refund of member contributions (578,502) 
Other 14,605 

Net change in total pension liability 800,989 

Total pension liability - beginning 8,579,150 

Total pension liability - ending $ 9,380,139 

Plan fiduciary net position 
Conttibutions . employer $ 469,455 
Contributions - employee 9,517 
Net invesnnent income 603,003 
Benefit payments, including refumli, of member cunnibutions (578,502) 
Administrative expense (I J,898) 

Net change In plan fiduciary net position 491,575 

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 5,319,838 

Plan fiduciary net position - ending $ 5,811,413 

Department's net pension liability - ending $ 3,568,726 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 62% 

Covered - employee payroll $ 985,91 I 

Department's net pension liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 362% 

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense 11% 

85 

2015 

$ 92,152 
649,835 

(530,732) 
25,668 

236,923 

8,342,227 

$ 8,579,150 

$ 430,584 
10,388 

(82,487) 
(530,732) 
(12,018) 

(184,265) 

5,504,103 

$ 5,319,838 

$ 3,259,312 

62% 

$ 1,026,051 

318% 

·2% 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT SYSTEMS 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

(Schedule is prepared prospectively upon implementation of GASB 68) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

DISTRICT HEAL TH DEPARTMENT-COMPONENT UNIT 

Actuarially determined contribution $ 

2016 

349,455 

469,455 

$ 

2015 

310,584 

430,584 Contributions in relation to the actuarially detennined contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (120,000) =$=· ==(~12=0~,0=00::f:) 

Covered employee payroll $ 985,91 I $ 1,026,051 

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 48% 42% 

Notes to Schedule: 

Actuarially detennined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31, two years 
prior to the end oftbe fiscal year in which contributions are reported. 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization method 

Remaini11g amo1tization period 

Asset valuation method 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate ofretum 

Retirement age 

Mortality 

Entry age 

Option A, Level Dollar C'-0ntribution, Closed 

5 to 24 years 

5 years smoothed value 

2.5% in the long term 

3.75%, average, including inflation 

8.00% 

Age 60. In the 20 I 4 actuarial valuation, expected retirement ages of general 
employees were adjusted to more closely reflect actual experience. 

Assumptions were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Tables 
(with rate multiplied by 105%), the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables, and 
the RP-2014 Juvenile Mortality Tables using a 50% male and 50% female 
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COUNTY OF moN. MICHIGAN 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT SYSTEMS 
SCHEDULE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
(Schedule is prepared prospectively upon implementation of GASB 68) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

MEDICAL CARE FACILITY-COMPONENT UNIT 

2016 
Total pension liability 

Service cost 
Interest 
Changes in benefit terms 
Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 
Benefit payments, including refund of member contributions 
Other 

$ 941,341 
2,293,670 
(131,532) 
493,921 

1,468,177 
(986,107) 

4,079,470 

26,068,387 

$ 

2015 

1,018,214 
1,980,798 

(862,397) 

2,136,615 

23,931,772 

Net change in total pension liability 

Total pension liability - beginning 

Total pension liability - ending $ 30,147,857 =$=====2=6=,06=8=,3=87= 

Plan fiduciary net position 
Contributions - employer 
Contributions - employee 
Net investment income 
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions 
Administrative expense 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 

Plan tiducia1-y net position - ending 

Facility's net pension liability - ending 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 

Covered - employee payroll 

Facility's net pension liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1,017,632 $ 
449,754 

(318,924) 
(45,726) 

(986,107) 

116,629 

20,565,689 

20,682,318 

9,465,539 

69% 

13,167,588 

72% 

-6% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

904,991 
398,939 

1,209,231 
(862,397) 

(34,702) 

1,616,062 

18,949,627 

20,565,689 

5,502,698 

79% 

I 1,794,697 

47% 

6% 



¢C 

"" 

Actuarially determined contribution 

Contribu1ions in relation to the actuarially ck'h."mlincd contribution 

Conmbulion deficiency (excess) 

Covered • employee payroll 

Contribution~ as a percentage or covered-cinploycc payroll 

Nute!< lo S~llfdule: 

$ 

$ 

s 

20Hi 

994.736 s 

994.736 

$ 

13,167.588 $ 

8~1. 

COU)\'TV m· fRO~. MICHIGAN 

EMPLOVEJ: RE'l'IKEMENT AND BENEFIT SYSTEMS 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIO~S 

For the Vear F.nded Dccrmber 31, 2016 

MEDICAL CAIU: t'ACILITY - COMPONENT IDI l'I' 

2015 2014 2013 2012 

1.018,208 $ 904.991 $ 551,367 $ 489.897 

1,018,208 904,9?1 551.367 489.897 

$ $ . $ . 

11.794.697 $ 11.634.239 $ 10.372.632 $ 10,295.019 

9% 8% 5% 5% 

Actuarially determined contribution ra1cs are calculated as of lkc.,,nl:,cr ,\ I $I. two years prior to the end of tl1e 
fiscal year in which contributions are feJ.1'.>1100. 

Medtods and assumptions used to determ•ue co111tibution rot~: 

Achlarial c~I method 
An,ortization method 
Remaining amortization pcricKl 
Assel vahiation melhod 
Inflation 

Entry age 
Leoel percelllage of payroll 

2S Y"""' 
I 0-years smoothed 
2.5% in the long term 
3.75%. average. indt.tding inflation 
8.00% 

2011 2010 2009 

$ 436.776 s 429.J36 $ 402.156 

436,776 429,336 402.156 

$ $ $ 

s 10.182.251 $ 9.268.253 $ 8,655.717 

41}0 5% 5% 

Salary increases 
Investment NIie of return 

Retirement age 
Mortality 

Nonual alfiO wilh 10 year vesting schedule. early at 55 with 25 years of service for unreduced bc-ncfits or 50 with 25 year.; of 8~'TVice, aod 5S with l S yc,,rs of service for reduced beoelils 
50% femaleiSO% male from the RP-2014 lleald1 Annuitant \1ortality Tables 

2008 2007 

s 383,076 $ 315J48 

383 076 J 15.348 

$ $ 

$ 8316.046 $ 8.026,827 

5% 4,, 



(a) 
Actuarial Actuarial 
Valuation Value 

Date of Assets 

l/I/09 $ $ 

1/1/12 

1/1/15 

(a) 
Actuarial Actuarial 
Valuation Value 

Date of Assets 

12/31/10 $ $ 
12/31/12 
12/31/14 

COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR 
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

December 31, 2016 

COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION 
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

(b) (b-a) 
Entry Age Unfunded 
Actuarial Accrued (alb) 
Accrued Liability Funded 
Liahili~ ~UAq Ratio 

5,471,703 $ 5,471,703 0% 
4,544,508 4,544,508 0% 
4,011,437 4,011,437 0% 

MEDICAL CARE FACILITY 
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

(b) (b-a) 
Entry Age Unfunded 
Actuarial Accrued (alb) 
Accrued Liability Funded 
Liability (UAL) Ratio 

2,509,410 $ 2,509,410 0% 
4,524,092 4,524,092 0% 
4,917,963 4,917,963 0% 

89 

[(b-a) I c] 
(c) UAL as a 

Annual Percentage 
Covered of Covered 
Pa~oll Pa~oll 

Not Available Nol Available 
Not Available Not Available 

Not Available Not Available 

[(b-a)ic] 
(c) UAL as a 

Annual Percentage 
Covered of Covered 
Payroll Payroll 

Not Available Not Available 
Not Available Not Available 
Not Available Not Available 
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COUNTY 01<' JRON3 MICHIGAN 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
December 31, 2016 

Special Revenue Funds 

Friend of 
Family Equipment County Court 

Counseling for 911 Parks Incentive 

ASSETS 
Cash and equivalents: 

Unrestricted $ 17,762 $ 1,379 $ 48,889 $ 8,830 
Receivables: 

State of Michigan 
Accounts 
Notes 
Current property taxes 98,443 

Prepaid items 56 

Total assets $ 17,762 $ 99,822 $ 48,945 $ 8,830 

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ $ $ 1,088 $ 
Accrued payroll 1,546 

Total liabilities 2,634 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Unavailable revenue 
Taxes levied for a subsequent period 98,443 

Total deferred inflows of resources 98,443 

FUND BALANCES 
Fund balances: 

Nonspendable: 
Prepaid items 56 

Restricted 1,379 8,830 
Assigned 17,762 46,255 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 17,762 1,379 46,311 8,830 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fund balances $ 17,762 $ 99,822 $ 48,945 $ 8,830 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Probation 
Surcharge 

5,759 

5,759 

5,759 

5,759 

$ 

$ 

$ 

5,759 $ 

Homestead 
Property Tax 
Exemption 

4,485 

4,485 

$ 

$ 

4,485 $ 

4,485 

4,485 $ 

Register of 
Deeds 

Automation 

147,680 

147,680 

Special Revenue Funds 

$ 

$ 

CDBG 
Grant 

81,843 

81,843 

$ 

$ 

Central 
Dispatch 

24,921 

77,936 
32,282 

8,212 

143,351 

Local 
Corrections 

Officer Trainin~ 

$ 12,019 

$ 12,019 

$ 

$ 

Concealed 
Weapon 
Permit 

6,950 

6,950 

1,165 $ $ 17;180 $ $ 

1,165 

146,515 

146,515 

147,680 $ 

81,843 

81,843 

21,006 

38,186 

8,212 

96,953 

105,165 

81,843 =$====='4=3=,3=51= 

See accompanying notes to financial !>1atements 
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12,019 6,950 

12,019 6,950 

$ 12,019 =$========6=,9=50= 



COUNTY OF IRON~ MICHIGAN 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
December 31, 2016 

Special Revenue Funds 

Drug Drug Drug Court 
Forfeiture - Forfeiture - Law Grant 
Prosecutor Sheriff Library Program 

ASSETS 
Cash and equivalents: 

Unrestricted $ 1,490 $ 2,233 $ 2,071 $ 17,296 
Receivables: 

State of Michigan 29,817 
Accounts 
Notes 
Current property taxes 

Prepaid items lO 

Total assets $ 1,490 $ 2,233 $ 2,071 $ 47,123 

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ $ $ 912 $ 1,2&4 
Accrued payroll 3,046 

Total liabilities 912 4,330 

Deferred fuflows of Resources: 
Unavailable revenue 
Truces Ie,~ed for a subsequent period 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

FUND BALANCES 
Fund balances: 

Nonspendable: 
Prepaid items 10 

Restricted 
Assigned 1,490 2,233 1,159 42,783 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 1,490 2,233 1,159 42,793 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fund balances $ 1,490 $ 2,233 $ 2,071 $ 47,123 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Senior 
Citizens 

1,500 $ 

132,898 

134,398 $ 

$ 

132,898 

132,898 

1,500 

1,500 

134,398 $ 

Alcohol 
Assessment 

41,271 $ 

41,271 $ 

103 $ 

103 

41,168 

41,168 

41,271 $ 

Special Revenue Funds 

Human 
Services 
Agency 

2,522 $ 

2,522 $ 

$ 
"81 

81 

2,441 

2,441 

2,522 $ 

Child 
Care 

19,605 $ 

5,991 

1,130 

26,726 $ 

621 $ 
2,125 

2,746 

1,130 

22,850 

23,980 

26,726 $ 

Soldiers 
Relief 

1,377 $ 

1,377 $ 

$ 

4 

4 

l,373 

1,373 

1,377 $ 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Veterans 

Trust 

6,814 $ 

Public Act 
302 

4,205 

6,814 =$====4'=2=05= 

$ 

4,205 
6,814 

6,814 4,205 

6,814 $ 4,205 
===== 



COUNTY OF IRON2 MICHIGAN 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
December 31, 2016 

Special Revenue Funds 

Sheriffs 
Department Courthouse EDC/Revol ving 

Plat Book Equipment Repair Loan 

ASSETS 
Cash and equivalents: 

Unrestricted $ 65,838 $ 35,192 $ 55,755 $ 194,771 
Receivables: 

State of Michigan 
Accounts 
Notes 32,210 
Current property taxes 

Prepaid items 

Total assets $ 65,838 $ 35,192 $ 55,755 $ 226,981 

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ $ 1,553 $ $ 1,169 
Accrued payroll 

Total liabilities 1,553 1,169 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Unavailable revenue 32,210 
Taxes levied for a subsequent period 

Total deferred inflows of resources 32,210 

FUND BALANCES 
Fund balances: 

Nonspendable: 
Prepaid items 

Restricted 193,602 
Assigned 65,838 33,639 55,755 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 65,838 33,639 55,755 193,602 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fund balances $ 65,838 $ 35,192 $ 55,755 $ 226,981 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Debt Capital Project 
Special Revenue Funds Service Funds Funds 

Total 
2003 Nonmajor 

l\'1DOC Courthouse Invasive Governmental 
Airyort Inmate Debt Retirement Species Funds 

$ 9,287 $ 49,047 $ 923 $ 13,101 $ 884,815 

113,744 
32,282 
32,210 

231,341 
9,408 

$ 9,287 $ 49,047 $ 923 $ 13,101 $ 1,303,800 

$ 634 $ 63 $ $ 1,944 $ 32,201 
308 28,116 

942 63 1,944 60,317 

32,210 
231,341 

263,551 

9,408 
48,984 923 347,025 

8,345 l l, 157 623,499 

8,345 48,984 923 11,157 979,932 

$ 9,287 $ 49,047 $ 923 $ 13,101 $ 1,303,800 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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COUNTY OF moN~ MICHIGAN 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

Special Revenue Fwtds 

Friend of 
Family Equipment County Court 

Counseling for 911 Parks Incentive 
REVENUES: 

Taxes $ $ 97,690 $ $ 
Federal sources 
State sources 1,900 
Charges for services 135,548 
Interest and rentals 800 
Other 2,085 2,103 2,870 

Total revenues 2,085 99,590 138,451 2,870 

EXPENDITURES: 
Judicial system 
General government 
Public safety 
Highway and transportation 
Cultural and recreation 140,405 
Health and welfare 2,000 
Community development 
Capital outlay l l,500 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Other 

Total expenditures 2,000 151,905 

Excess revenues (expenditures) &5 99,590 (13,454) 2,870 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer in 23,700 
Transfer out (99,165) 

Total other financing sources (uses} (99,165) 23,700 

Net changes in fund balance 85 425 10,246 2,870 

Fund balances - beginning of year 17,677 954 36,065 5,960 

Fund balances - ending $ I 7,762 $ 1,379 $ 46,311 $ 8,830 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Homestead Register of Local Concealed 
Probation Property Tax Deeds CDBG Central Corrections Weapon 
Surcharge Exemption Automation Grant Dispatch Officer Training Permit 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

98,165 
17,455 456,016 3,940 5,705 

409 93 
1,886 9,684 

1,886 17,864 9,684 554,274 3,940 5,705 

144 
2,836 

701,272 750 796 

ll,520 
8,892 

144 (1,728 11,520 701,272 750 796 

1,742 6,136 (1,836) (146,998) 3,190 4,909 

118,000 

118,000 

1,742 6,136 (1,836) (28,998) 3,i90 4,909 

4,017 140,379 83,679 134,163 8,829 2,041 

$ 5,759 $ $ 146,515 $ 81,843 $ 105,165 $ 12,019 $ 6,950 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

REVENUES: 
Taxes 
Federal sources 
State sources 
Charges for services 
Interest and rentals 
Other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Judicial system 
General government 
Public safety 
Highway and transportation 
Cultural and recreation 
Health and welfare 
Community development 
Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Other 

Total expenditures 

Excess revenues (expenditures) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer in 
Transfer out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net changes in fund balance 

Fund balances - beginning of year 

$ 

Drug 
Forfeiture -
Prosecutor 

3 

3 

3 

3 

1,487 

$ 

Special Revenue Funds 

Drug 
Forfeiture -

Sheriff 

1 
250 

251 

251 

251 

1,982 

$ 

Law 
Library 

14,065 

14,065 

(14,065) 

12,000 

12,000 

(2,065) 

3,224 

$ 

Drug Court 
Grant 

Program 

II0,997 
284 

l 11,281 

117,903 

L 17,903 

(6,622} 

(6,622) 

49,415 

Fund balances - ending $ 1,490 $ 2,233 =$====:::::::::::1 '=15=9= =$=====4=2,=79=3= 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Human 
Senior Alcohol Services Child Soldiers Veterans Public Act 

Citizens Assessment Agency Care Relief Trust 302 

$ 134,413 $ $ $ $ $ $ 

226 27,087 7,267 1,826 
3,837 3,782 

2 
7,873 2,462 

134,639 11,710 33,331 7,267 1,828 

1,640 

1,067 

134,639 921 116,873 1,267 4,634 

134,639 1,640 921 116,873 1,267 4,634 l,067 

10,070 (921) (83,542) (1,267) 2,633 761 

2,500 101,671 1,100 

2,500 101,671 1,100 

10,070 1,579 18,129 (167) 2,633 761 

1,500 31,098 862 5,851 J,540 4,181 3,444 

$ 1,500 $ 41,168 $ 2,441 $ 23,980 $ 1,373 $ 6,814 $ 4,205 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

99 



COUNTY OF IRON3 MICHIGAN 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

Special Revenue Fund., 

Sheriff's 
Department Courthouse EDC/Revolving 

Plat Book 
REVENUES: 

E!;!uiprnent Repair Loan 

Taxes $ $ $ $ 
Federal sources 
State sources 
Charges for services 
Interest and rentals 10 230 
Other 10,754 34,448 51,069 

Total revenues 10,754 34,458 51,299 

EXPENDITURES: 
Judicial system 
General government 8,877 18,109 
Public safety 16,995 
Highway and transportation 
Cultural and recreation 
Healtl1 and welfare 
Community development 
Capital outlay 439 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Other 6,562 

Total expenditures 8,877 17,434 18,109 6,562 

Excess revenues (expenditures) 1,877 17,024 (18,109) 44,737 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer in 30,000 
Transfer out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 30,000 

Net changes in fund balance 1,877 17,024 11,891 44,737 

Fund balances - beginning of year 63,961 16,615 43,864 148,865 

Fund balances - ending $ 65,838 $ 33,639 $ 55,755 $ 193,602 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Debt Capital Project 
Seecial Revenue Funds Service Funds Funds 

Total 
2003 Nonmajor 

MDOC Courthouse Invasive Governmental 
Aitport Inmate Trust Debt Retirement Species Funds 

$ $ $ $ $ 232,103 

247,468 
9,749 636,316 

6,402 7,950 
125,484 

6,402 9,749 J,249,321 

15,849 
29,822 

23,411 862,194 
9,798 9,798 

1,944 142,349 
260,334 

I 1,520 
8,500 29,331 

11,000 I 1,000 
12,665 12,665 

6,562 

9,798 31,911 23,665 1,944 1,391,424 

(3,396) (22,162) (23,665) (1,944) (142,103) 

5,000 23,665 5,000 322,636 
(99, I 65) 

5,000 23,665 5,000 223,471 

1,604 (22,162) 3,056 81,368 

6,741 71,146 923 8,101 898,564 

$ 8,345 $ 48,984 $ 923 $ 11,157 $ 979,932 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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COUNTY OF lRON, MICHIGAN 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

AGENCY FUNDS 
December 31, 2016 

General Friend 
Trust and Flex of the Court 
Agencr Spending Trust 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalent<;: 

Unrestricted $ 280,357 $ 62,720 $ 20 

Total assets $ 280,357 $ 62,720 $ 20 

LIABILITIES 
Due to external parties $ $ $ 
Undistributed taxes 224,170 
Other liabilities 56,187 62,720 20 

Total liabilities $ 280,357 $ 62,720 $ 20 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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District Court 
Bonds 

$ 7,592 

$ 7,592 

$ 

7,592 

$ 7,592 



Library Inmate 
Fund Trust Totals 

$ 29,491 $ 6,747 $ 386,927 

$ 29,491 $ 6,747 $ 386,927 

$ $ 2,637 $ 2,637 
224,170 

29,491 4,110 160,120 

$ 29,491 $ 6,747 $ 386,927 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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SINGLE AUDIT 



Kristine P. Berhow, CPA, P,i ncipal 
Alan M. Stoll., CPA, Prim:ipal 

ANDERSON, TACKMAN & COMPANY,PLC Brandy M. Olson , CPA , Principal 
----Certified Public Accountants---------------------------­

Kalhlccn A. Ciantar, CPA 

OFFICES IN MICHIGAN AND WISCONSIN Alaina R. Kreis, CPA 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORNIED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT A UDJTING STANDARDS 

To the Members of the Board of Commissioners 
County of Iron 
Crystal Falls, Michigan 49920 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the County of Iron, Michigan as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County of Iron, Micrugan's basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 15, 2017. Our report includes a reference to other 
auditors who audited the financial statements of the Iron County Medical Care Facility, as described in our report 
on the County of Iron, Michigan's financial statements. The financial statements of the Iron County Medical Care 
Facility were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and accordingly, this report does 
not include reporting on internal control over financial reporting or instances of reportable noncompliance 
associated with the Iron County Medical Care Facility. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County of Iron, Michigan's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to detennine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County of Iron, Michigan's internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County of Iron, Michigan's internal control. 

A d~ficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant d<:;ficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal 
control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be 
significant deficiencies. See item 20 16-001 . 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County of Iron, Michigan's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we perfonned tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as 
item 2016·002. 

The County of Iron, Michigan's Response to Findings 

County of Jron, Michigan's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The County of Iron, Michigan's response was not su~jected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

June 15,2017 
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OFFICES IN MICHIGAN AND WISCONSIN 

Kristine P. Berhow. CPA, Principal 
Alan M. Stotz, CPA, Principal 
Brandy M. Olson, CPA, Principal 

Kathleen A. Cianlar, CPA 
Alaina R. Kreis, CPA 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Members of the Board of Commissioners 
County of Iron, Michigan 
Crystal Falls, Michigan 49920 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the County of Iron, Michigan's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described 
in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the County of Iron, 
Michigan's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2016. County of Iron, Michigan's major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. 

County of Iron, Michigan's basic financial statements include the operations of the Iron County Road 
Commission and the Iron County Medical Care Facility. The Iron County Road Commission received $884,636 
in federal awards which is not included in County oflron, Michigan's schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
during the year ended December 31, 2016. Our audit, described below, did not include the operations of the Iron 
County Road Commission or the Iron Cowity Medical Care Facility because the component units issue separately 
audited financial statements, which include an audit of compliance, if required. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its fedt:ral programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County of Iron, Michigan's major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements ref erred to above. We conducted our 
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Those standards and the Unifonn Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence about the County of Iron, Michigan's compliance with those requirements and performing 
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circwnstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a Jegal detennination of the County of Iron, Michigan's 
compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

fu our opinion, the County of Iron, Michigan, complied, in al1 material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs 
for the year ended December 31, 2016. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the County of Iron, Michigan, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internaJ 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. fu planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered the County of Iron, Michigan's internal contro] over compliance with the 
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County of 
Iron, Michigan's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely 
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 
basis. A sign~fi,cant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that 
is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

June 15, 2017 
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COUNTY OF IRON. MICHIGAN 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

For the year ended December 31, 20J6 

Federal Agency or 
Federal grantor/pass-through/program title CFDA# pass-through nwnber 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES: 
Passed through the Michigan Department of Health 

and Human Services: 
Title IV-D Cooperative Reimbursement 93.563 CSFOC-13-36001 

CSPA-13-36002 
Friend of Court - Federal Incentives 93.563 

Passed through the Michigan Depanment of Health 
and Human Services: 

Medicaid Clm,1er - Medical Assistance Program 93.778 20161678,20170284 
Family Planning Project 93.217 20161678,20170284 
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Title V 93.994 20161678,20170284 
hnmunization 93.268 20161678,20170284 
Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PREP) 93.069 20161678,20170284 
Project Grants and Cooperative Agreements for 

Tuberculosis Control Programs 93.116 20161678,20170284 
PPHF Capacity Building Assistance to Strengthen 

Public Health hnmunization Infrastructure and 
Performance 93.539 20161678,20170284 

Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTIJRE: 
Passed through State of Michigan Department of Natural 

Resources & Environment: 
Forest Service Schools and Roads Cluster: 

Schools & Roads - Grants to States 10.665 unavailable 
Passed through the Michigan Department of Health 

and Human Services: 
Special Supplemental Food Program for Woman, 

Infants and Children 10.557 20161678,20170284 
Passed through the Michigan Fitness Foundation 

SNAP Cluster - Food Stamps 10.561 FY 2016 DIDHD 
Passed through Michigan Department of Education: 

Child Nutrition Cluster: 
Special Milk Program for Children 10.556 unavailable 

Direct Payments: 
Community Facilities Loans & Grants Cluster 10.766 11/a 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
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$ 91,498 
23,257 
15,009 

166,351 
20,167 
27,746 

105,825 
123,241 

100 

19,347 

592,541 

143,051 

224,820 

25.681 

1,139 

13,000 

407,691 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

For the year ended December 31, 2016 

Federal Agency or 
Federal grantor/pass-through/program title CFDA# pass-through number 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION: 
Passed through Dickinson-Iron httennediate School District: 

Special Education Grants for Infants and 
Families with Disabilities (Early On) 84.181 unavailable 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 
Passed through State Department of Natural Resources 

& Enviromnent: 
Federal Boating Safety Financial Assistance Program 97.012 unavailable 

Passed through State Emergency Management: 
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 unavailable 

Passed through Houghton County, Michigan: 
2014 Michigan Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 unavailable 
2015 Michigan Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 unavailable 

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Passed through State Depanment of Environmental 

Quality: 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Cluster: 

Capitalized Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving 66.468 unavailable 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
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27,837 

6,500 

7,139 

3,081 
4,783 

21,503 

1,126 

$ 1,050,698 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

NOTE A - OVERSIGHT AGENCY 

The U.S. Department of Agriculture is the current year's oversight agency for single audit as 
determined by the agency providing the largest share of the County's direct federal financial 
assistance. 

NOTE B- BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the 
federal award activity of Iron County under programs of the federal government for the year 
ended December 31, 2016. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Unifonn 
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Iron 
County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, 
or cash flows of Iron County. The information in the schedules reconciles with the amounts 
presented in the financial statements as shown in Note F below. 

NOTE C - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the 
Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. 

(2) Iron County has elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under 
the Uniform Guidance. 

NOTED- PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR'S OR PROGRAM NUMBERS 

The pass-through grantor~s number represents the County's provider I.D. number. Such other 
J.D. numbers were not available or provided by the State administering agencies. 

NOTE E-PASS-THROUGH GRANT MONIES 

During 2016, the County did not act as a pass-through agent for any federal monies. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

NOTE F - FEDERAL REVENUE RECONCILIATION 

Federal revenue per governmental fund financial statements $ 512,579 

Federal expenditures per schedule of expenditures of federal award 1,050,698 

Difference (538,119) 

Reconciling items: 

Federal revenues reported in the component units which are included 
on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards: 

District Health Department 742,242 

Federal revenues not reported in the financial statements, but on the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards because the funds were 
receipted and disbursed in a trust and agency fund: 

Schools and Roads - Grant to States 143,051 

Federal funds disbursed on behalf of Iron County by Houghton County 
for the following grant programs. 

Michigan Homeland Security Grant Program 7,864 

Federal funds received for payment in-lieu of taxes reported as federal 
revenue but are not considered for single audit purposes. !355,038) 

Reconciled difference $ 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on the basic financial statements of the 
County of Iron, Michigan. 

2. One significant deficiency was disclosed during the audit of the basic financial statements as 
reported in the Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and 
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and are detailed in part B of this schedule. 

3. There was one instance of noncompliance material to the basic financial statements of the 
County of Iron, Michigan disclosed during the audit. 

4. There were no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses disclosed during the audit of the 
major federal programs as reported in the Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each 
Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. 

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal programs for the County of Iron, 
Michigan expresses an unmodified opinion. 

6. There were no audit findings relative to the major federal programs for the County of Iron, 
Michigan. 

7. The programs tested as a major program included: 

• Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP), CFDA #93.069 
• WIC, CFDA #10.557 
• School & Roads - Grants to States, CFDA #10.665 

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A & B programs was $750,000. 

9. The County of Iron, Michigan was detennined not to be a low-risk auditee. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Yea1· Ended December 31, 2016 

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL ST A TEMENT AUDIT 

2016-001: PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Statement of Condition/Criteria: The County of Jron, Michigan does not prepare their own 
financial statements. 

Effect: Significant deficiency in internal controls over financial reporting as County of Iron, 
Michigan does not have controls over preparation of the financial statements which would 
prevent or detect a misstatement in the financial statements. 

Cause of Condition: The County of Iron, Michigan does not possess the personnel capable of 
preparing financial statements and the required footnote disclosures. 

Recommendation: Consideration should be given to hire an individual with ability to prepare the 
County financial statements. 

Management Response: Iron County has chosen their independent auditor to prepare these 
financial statements and required footnote disclosures on their behalf. 

2016-002: COMPLIANCE FINDING - VIOLATION OF PUBLIC ACT 2 OF 1968, AS 
AMENDED 

Statement of Condition/Criteria: During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, expenditures 
were incurred in excess of amounts appropriated in the amended budgets (see footnote B for 
detai]). Expenditures in excess of appropriations is contrary to the provisions of Public Act 2 of 
1968, as amended. 

Effect: Material non-compliance. 

Cause of Condition: The County of Iron, Michigan did not amend the budget as necessary near 
year end. 

Recommendation: Budgets should be amended prior to expenditures being incurred that are in 
excess of appropriated amounts. 

Management Response: In the future, budgets will be more conservatively reviewed prior to the 
end of the fiscal year in an effort to prevent expenditures in excess of appropriated amounts. 

113 



COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL A \VARD PROGRAMS 
AUDIT 

There were no findings for the current fiscal year. 
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COUNTY OF IRON, MICHIGAN 
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 

A. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL A WARD PROGRAMS 
AUDIT 

There were no findings for the prior fiscal year relating to major federal award programs. 
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County of Iron 
State of Michigan 

Fiscal Year Ended 
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LJST Of CURRENT 
NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED MUNICIPAL SECURITIES 

INFORMATION REPOSITORIES (NRMSJRs) 

The Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board {.MSRB), effective July I, 2009, received approval 
from the Securities .ahd Exchange Commission lo launch operations of the continuing disclosure service 
of the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Mar.ket Access system (EMMA). The annual filing of audited 
financial statements along with this Continuing Disclosure Undertaking is no longer accepted hy the 
Nationally Recogniud Municipal Securities information Repositories. The continuing disclosure service 
will receive el~ctroni(.: submissions in PDP format by issuers (Iron County) and their agents (Anderson 
Tackman & Company. PLC) al WWW$Jllma.msrb.org where they will be made publicly available on the 
internet. 

STATE INFORMATION REPOSITORY 

Municipal Advisory Council of Michigan 
1445 First National Building 
Detroit, Michigan 48226-3517 
Phone: 313-963-0420 
Fax: 313-963-0943 
E-mail: mac@macrni.coin 

116 



MUNIClPAL SECONDARY MARKET DISCLOSU RE 
INFORMATION COVER SHEET 

Thi~ L">l'Cr shee.t s1muld he ~ent with all submi:ssk,n;; made tu the: Munkipa! ~e.:uritii:,; .R ulemakin!! B.oard .. N11!ionally Ke-cogn il~cl 

Municipal Securities lnfc-rm ~1 ion Rcpositori..:~, andany arp licablc Sta te lnformaticn Otpo~itory p11mi1mt l,>Se~;,iritiesaoJ 1:xl'.!ianiie 

C'r.,mmissior. Rule 151:1-12. 

lss;,er\ and/r,r Other Ob!igattd Person's Name: C111111ty oflrun, Michigan 

CtiSlP Numbers \allach 1>.ddifa1nal ,heel ff necessary): 

0 Nin .. -dig it 11uml>t-r(s) lO whi~h the infonm11ion rd~1es 

00 lntorma,i(,n relate~ ,~all ~enrities isst:ed by the iswer having the foliowlng six-dig if number{sj: 467.76! 
b-i>• 

Nlln,ber of pii),C~ 1•f au~ched inforr.1a1ion: 

Ot~cr1rtivn of Mmcrial bent Notic;~ I Financial [nform&tio:1 tCh(ck Onei: 
r. Principal ~nd intcrestpayn,tntddinqi.encie$ 
2. N(ln-Pa~1nc11t rt:latt-<l dt-foul l~ 
, 
J, 

4. 
5 . 
6. 

7. 

8 . 

9, 
JO. 

II 
12. 
13. 
i4. _x -

Unscheduled draws l•n deb• scrvi,;;~ n·scrves retktting finwii.:illl diflicuhie~ 
Cnschcdulcd dr51~s M t:rcdit enh,mccmtnl.s refa,:ting financiai difficultic~ 
SubstiMiou of crecit or liquidity pro,iders. 01 tliei; fail l•re to perform 
Ad\ersc t;i.x c,pini<,ns •Jf e,·cnts affociing the lil'<·exempt status of the ~ccurity 
M1:.dification~ to right~ d ~ecuritics hvldcrs 
Ron~ tall& 
J>di:asance~ 
Release. ~t1hsii1ution. ()r saleofprop~rt~ securin£ rep~ymcnt <>fihc securihes 

Ri:1i11g chan£'!S 
1-~ilure t,,; pm~idc annual fin3ncial iuform~ti,,n a~ m1uircd 
C>therm .. terial cvem notice (,~cify') 

Financial informatkm•: Pleas.:: ched, all app,.,priatc bo.ixe:.: 

0 (,\Fl(: (8) D ir,clude, Li doe~ nm indu,k i\11mi.il f inanci~: lr, i'1•rmatiun 

(b) Audited? Yes f:l NoD 

00 Annual rinanciul lnfhnnalinn: t\tu!hed? Yes !XI No D 
00 Operating D1:1t11 

Fiscal Perind Co-Ymd: l:.u!'.ltl Yur t;n,gc tt Qcscmbst :IJ...6!Ufi 

*I· in~nc.ial information should 1101 be filed 11, ith th~ MSRB .... 
J hcr~b\! represent that J am authonzcd bq the ii sue, or H~ a1tcn1 tn distrihllk this informalion puhliclv. 

::~::~~~-~ ~~-- -~--- _T;,;,· tt,;~ayJ~~ 

117 



Assesse<l Year of Sra~e 
Value as of Equalization 

!)_~c~m ~~r}I_ .. and Tax Levy, 

20! I 202(112 
20 12 20 13 

2013 2014 
2014 201 5 

2015 201 6 

CouDty of!ron 
Total Taxable Value 

Fiscai \' ean J~nded l)eeemocr 31 , 2012 Through 2016 

Equiv~knl Taxable 
County's -Ad Value of Prope11y 

·Fiscal Year Valorem Granted Tax 
Ended taxable Ab~tement Under 

1)ecernbe.r3.L - --· A£LJ.2~ill 
:mm~ 483,408,192 3 .. 1 I0,503 
20 13 493,608,638 3,000,000 

2014 4 79,164.6)7 3.2()3,257 
W!5 4.86,7.10,!95 2,503,741 

2016 490. 103,209 823,700 

Percent 
Increase 

Total -Over 
'fa.'lable Prior 

Value Year 
483.408., 192 1.46 
493.608,638 l.02 
479,164,167 .97 
486,7 10, l95 l.0'.2 
490, 103,209 1.01 

Per Capita J otal Taxable Value for lht: Fiscal Year Ended December 3 1, 2016 (2). ............................................ .. ............... . 

CI ) At the ful l.tax rate. 
(2 } Based on the County's 20 10 Census population of I I, 817. 
Source: County oflron 

lls~ 
Agriq1llure .............. . 
Commercial ..... ........ . 

Utility ...................... . 
Indusu-ial .. ............... . 

Residential ............... . 
Timber Cutover .... ... . 

Total ......... ,., ..... .,, 

~lass 
Real Property .. ........ . 
Persona! Property .... . 

Total ................ .. . 

Source: County of Iron 

Coun.ty of!roµ 
TQta.1 Taxable Value by Use and C h1$s 

f'i<ical Years Ended De<:ember 31, 2012 Through 2016 

Fiscal Y ear Ended December 31 
J012 

10.048,069 
33,820,842 
43,943,776 
30,926,234 

325,242,429 
1.9.23 5.449 
463,21{!.79 

2013 
10,637,916 
34,515,130 
44,412.260 
32,J 10,727 

333,23S,7J.O 
1!2,.2.21,.1.56 

474.203.~ 

201 2 20.l.3 
$ 419.273,023 S 429,791 ,639 

.. 64 •. 1 J5J.§.9·--· - ..•.... 63.81_6,999._ 
$ :J~.408, 192 $ i<B..§Ql638 
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20[4 
9,912,428 

34,935,974 
34,856,1 21 
32,790,643 

334,559.773 
19.814.779 

466.869.ill 

2014. 
$ 432.013,597 
_ ·-- 47,151 ,020 _ 

S 479 .lQ:Lfill 

2015 
l0,244,604 
34,9D,419 
·37.225,582 
33,656,029 

340, 160.468 
19,725.399 

115.,9)~ ] 

WL~ 
$ 438 • .699,919 

48,010.276 

20 !.§. 
10,503,108 
34,135,379 
38,140,13 J 
35,:?.31,869 

342,88.3.788 
19,714,578 

479,208,853 

iQ!<i 
$440,468,722 

49,634,487 
S 490,1 03..,209 



~ 
Agriculture .. ............. 
Commercial .............. 
Utility ........... , ........... 
lndu~trial ..... .......... .. 
Residential. ............... 
Timber Cutover ........ 

Total ................... 

Class 
Real Property ........... 
,Personal Property .... 

Total ......... .......... 

County or lron 
Perc~nl or Tota} Taxable Value by use and Class 

Fhcal Years Ended December 31. :rn l 2 Through 20 l 6 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31st 
201 2 2013 2014 20!5 
2.16% 2.16% 2.07% 2.15% 
7.00%, 8.30% 8.53% 7.34 

ll.QO% 9.00% 7.27% 7.82 
8.41% 9.2.1% 8.17% 7.07 

67.52% 67,51% 69.82 71.48 
J.Jl% 3.91.% 4.14% 4.14 

@..m.6., 100.00°1 100.00°4 !00.Q(f~ 

2012 201 3 2014 2015 
86.73% 87.-07% 90.16% 90.i4%) 

13.22% 12.97~ 9 84~1! 2,86% 

.lfil},90% I 00-0!lli 100..00% 100ll.Q% 

Source: County of Iron 

Assessed 
Value as of 

County of Iron 
Tota! State .Equalized Valuation 

Fisc11I Years Ended December 31 , 2012 Through 201(1 
SEY of Property 

Count}'S Granted Tax 
Year of State Fiscal Year Ad Abatement 
F.qualization Ended Yalorem Under Acts 198 1 otal 
and Tax Lev.1 December 3 1 SEY and 255 SEY 

2012 20 I 2 700.I61,88 8 3 .110,503 700, 161.888 
2013 2013 691,122.933 3.000,000 691,122,933 
2014 20!4 662 ,250,664 3,263,257 665,51~,91I 
2015 1015 665.307,iOO 2,503,741 6fl,81"1 ,44 I 

~QJ.Q 
2.19% 
7.13% 
8.09% 
6.93% 

71.55% 
4.11% 

.JOJ).00% 

lQJ~ 
89.87'% 
lQ,D 
% 

JOQ.,_OJ)}'"g 

Percent 
lncrea~e 

Over 
()ecember J I 

2011 
2012 
2013 
20i4 
2015 2016 2016 669.622.220 sn,700 669,622,220 1.01% 

Per Capito Total SEY for the Fiscal Year Ended De-eember 3 J, 2016 ( I ) .... ...... , .... .. ....... , .... ....... , ..... $56,300.89 

( I) Ba~ on the C'-0unty's 2010 Census populatio11 of 11,817. 
Source: County oflron 
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<::ounty of )fO!l 
Total SEV by Use and Class 

Fiscal Yea rs :Knded December 31, 2012 Th rough 2016 

~~ 
Agriculture .............. . 
Cornmercial .......... . , .. 

Utility ...................... . 
.Industrial ................. . 
Residential .. ............ . 
Timber ~ utov~r ....... . 

Total .................. . 

Pas!. 
Real Property ..... ....... 
Personal Property .... .. 

Source: County oflrnn 

201 2 
$ 19.181 ,792 

39,173,24 8 
47,639,374 
31,977,930 

494,287,932 
~Ui98,228 

$. 6 79 .2..~ ... ~9_4 

201 2 
$632,319, l30 

67.842.1~8 
~.700, I ti.).jM 

2..Q.Ll. 
$ 19,500,3 16 

39 ,146.,066 
47,996,338 
33,417.,830 

486.269,98 l 
45.38) ,507 

~..6?L?.11 .. CLl! 

201 ~ 
$623,715 ,700 

67,40 2,231 

S 691.122..9..U 

2014 
$ 18,665.,227 

38,364,420 
38,010,060 
J3,815,1 97 

476,585,127 
44.,513.549 

$,. ~ 9."9-H,~-~ 

2011 
$ 611,943,520 

50.307. 144 
~ 662 250,~94 

County of h ·on 

2015 
$ 18,958,668 

38,504. J 84 
39,039,674 
34,590,347 

4$0,854,903 
42.849.446 

$ {154,796,222 

201 5 
$ 615,757,_!i48 

49,55Q,152 

1.265, ~07 700 

Percent of Total SEV by Ust an4 Cass 
Fiscal Years Ended December .'1, 20.1:l Tlm)Ugh 2016 

Use JD.Li 2013 ~QH 201 5 
Agriculture ............... 2.82% 2.90% 2.88% 2.90% 
Commercial .............. 5.77 5.83 5.90 5.88 
Utility ....................... 7.00 7.14 5.84 5.% 
lndust.riaJ .................. 4.70 4.98 5.20 5.28 

Residentl;:il ............... 72 .70 72.39 73.3 3 ~i~M:·. ~· 
·nm~r Cutover .. ...... 7.01 6.7§ 6.85 6.Sj 

Total ................... 100.0Q.% JOO. 00% .!Q0.00%. lt;)O.OQ% 

Class ~12 201 3 201 4 2015 
Real Property .•. .. 90.25% 902.5% .92.40% 92.55% 

Personal Property ...... 9.69 9.75 7.60 .ill 
J00.00% iOO.OQ°-fc? JOOQQ.o/.~ )00,00% 

Source: County of Iron 

County of Iron 
Prop.erty TaxRates 

Fiscal \'can; End<-d December 3 1, 2012 Through 2016 

Fiscal '\' car.; 
Levy Ended Youth Senior 

Dec. 31 Dec.31 Allcica1ed Camp• Medical .. Debt .. Citizen* Health* 1)1 1 * 
2011 201 2 6.4800 0 . .5000 1.5000 2.0500 0.2700 0.3452 N'A 

201 2 2013 6.4300 0.5000 ! .5000 2..0000 0.2700 0.4:100 NIA 

2013 2014 6.4300 0.5000 1.5000 1.4850 0.2700 0.4200 N/.i\ 

20\4 2015 6.4300 0.5000 1. 5000 1.6600 0.2700 0.5200 0.2000 

201 5 2016 o.4300 0.51)00 l .5000 1.6800 0.2700 0.4200 0.2000 
• Vot..:d .!vlillage 
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2016 
S l.8,776,644 

37,874,643 
39,92J,M5 
34,363,092 

485,679,837 
42,111,&03 

$658,727,864 

2016 
$9 I8;806,019 

50,SJ6.201 

$669.(i.2,2.220 

201 6 
2.85% 

5.75 
6.06 
5.27 

73.73 
§J.2 

100,0Q.¼-

201 § 
92.41 % 

7.59 
lQ_0.0% 

Roads• Total 

0.500(} 11. !452 

0.5000 I l.9200 

0.5000 11.1050 

U.5000 10.9800 

0.5000 11.5000 



County of !rol'l' 
rroperty Tax Collections 

.f"iscltl Y<'at·s Ended or Ending Dt!cem ber 31, 2012 T hrotJgh 2016 

Fiscal Years 
Dec. I Ended or Ending 

Levy j)ecember ;\ I 
201 i 2012 
201 2 2013 
20 13 20 i4 
2014 2015 
2015 201 6 

(I) Include!"> real property laxes. 
( l ) At sett lement 
Source: County oflrori 

Profil~ 1>ftbe Ten Largest T axpaye.rs 

Cl1Hections to Percent Collected 10 

County March 1 March I 
Tax Leyy ( 1 ) following: !.e\'.}'. following L~ 
19,476,682 18;094,140 92.90% 
19,559,705 18,4.15,235 94.15% 
19,48 1, 185 18.823/P,6 96.62¾ 
19.118.845 17,540,093 91.74% 
19,438,579 18,036,829 92.79% 

Re.fleeted ht>Jow are the County's. ten larges.I property taxpayers, )heir principal product or service and res~le.ctive 
Taxable Value for iLc, fiscal year ende.d December 3 L 20J 5. 

Taxable 
Taxpayer Prim:.ipzjhoi;luct or Service Value 
WE Energies Utility............. ............................................. 36,004.741 
American Transmission Co......... ............ Uli litJ ............... ...... ... ....... ............ ,.... ........ .. 12,734,3~4 
Great Lakes Gas................................... ... Utility ... .......................... ·...... ..................... .. 11,499,139 
Enbridge Energy...................................... Util.ity .................................. ..................... 7,064.723 
UP P C O .... ... ..... ..... . ... .... .... ... .... ... UJility .......... .... .......... ... , .... ..... ... ... .... .... ...... 3,468,200 
:Northern Trust Company...... Finani;:i;illns;i rution . ........ ... . .. ............ .. ... 2,867.104 
The Wilderness LLC..... ........ Land ! Wild life Mang.ement. ..... . . .... .... .. .. 2,378.005 
Ang¢1i Mangement Corp ... , . .. .. .. .. .. . ... . Retail Management. ... .. ..... ... .... ... .... .... 2366,944 
Aramark Uniform Services Inc. ... .. . .. ... . facility C leaning Services . .. .. . ...... ... .. ... 1,889,872 
Krist Oil Co. Inc. .. ...... ... ... ... Gas I Propane Supplier. ... ... . ... .. . .. . ......... 1,609,47 J 

(1) Based on $490, l 03,209 w hich is the County's Taxable Va1ue for the fiscal year ended December 31, 20 i 6 
Source: County of (ron 

County of Iron 
Revenues from the State of Michigan 

J,' is~I Ye.a.rs f.n dcd Dec~mber 31, 201 I T tirough 2015 

State Sales Tax .... ...... ............. .. 
2012 

$266,751 

Fiscal Year$'Ended December 31 
20!3 20 14 201 5 

S 143,077 S.232,729 S270,167 

St,urcc: Iron County and the Michigan Department of T reasury. 
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Percent of 
Tota! /Ii 

7.3..5% 
2.60% 
2.35% 
1.44% 
0.7.1% 
0.59% 
0.49% 
0.48% 
0.39 % 
0,33% 

if!l.§ 
·$270,642 



COUNTY DEBT 

Coristitution.a l Dcht !,imitations 

Article VII, Section I I of the Mich igan Constitution states "No COijn1y shall incur any indebtedness which shall 
increase iti, total qebt beyond IO percent of its assessed valuation~. 

L~gal Debt Margin 

Pursuant to the statutory and constitutional debt provisions set forth herein, the fo llowing tahk rctlccts the amol)nt of 
additional debt the County may legally incur as of December 3 1, 20 l 6 . 

Debt Limit (2) ..... ...................................... ................................. . 
Debt Out.standing ........... ................. ..... ,, ....... ............. .............. . . 
Less: No County Credi! Pledge Issues .... .......... , .. , ........ ........... . 
Legal Debt Margin ....................... ............................................. . 

Debt Stlltcment 

$7 10,090,928 
$ i4,474,542 

H .474,542 
ru ..... 616,386 

The fi:)llowing table reflects a breakdt-rwn of th1: County's direct and underlying debt 11s of December 31, 20·16. 
Direct debt that is sho"Wn as self-supporting is paid from sources other than the County's Gen<:ral f und. 

To the extent necessary, the County may levy taxes on all taxablr. property within its .boundaries without limitation as to 
rate or amount to pay the principal of and intel'est due on the bonds that art designated as Un limited Tax { "UT"). Hov.ever, 
the County's ability to levy taxes to pay debt servfoe on the bond~ that are designated as Limited Tax ("LT") is. subject w 
applicable statutory and constitutiona'I limilations. 

County Direct Debt 

Michigan Transportation Fund Bonds: 
Dated February 12, 2003 ............. ...... ......... , .. . 

Subtotal .................................. ..................... . 

General Obl igation Bonds; 
Dated March 3, 2005 (UT) ......... ,. ................. . 
Dated August 12, 2.004 (LT) .............. .. , ........ .. 
Dat~d August 19, 2003 (LT.) ......... , ... ............ . 

Dated March 8, 2012 . Co.Combim:d ............ . 
Dated November l, 2002 (UT) ............ . 

Dale<l,7/1 2/2012 Building 
Authority.(Medicare) .. . 

Subtotal ...................................................... . 

Total.. .............. ..... ...................... .... .. .... , ..... . $ 

Self,S.upporting 

1.750,000 =$ _ _ ___ -0-
.l .. rn> . .9_(.)0 s -o-

-0- $ 
-0-

309,000 
6,7 15,000 

-0-

7,295,223 

I 4,322,223 $ 

16.072,223 ~$ - -

-{>. 

-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-

-0-

-0-

·-~ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

PerCapitaNetC'ountyDirectDcbt( l ) .... ....... ......... ................................. .......... ... ... ........... ............. . 
Per~ent of Net Direct Debt to Total Sf.Y (2 ) ........... ....... .... ... ............. .... .................... ...... .. ... .. ......... . 

(1) Based on the County's 201OCensus population of 11.817. 
(2) Based on S669,622.220 which is the County's Total SEV for its fisca l year e11dcd Dt::Cem~r 31 , 2016 
Source: County oflron and the M unicip.il Advisr.,ry Council of Michigan. 

1""1? ~-

-0-
-0-

28"/,00lJ 
5,535,000 

-0-

6,972,222 

12,794,222 

14,369.222 

$1 ,215.97 
2.1 5% 



Pension Plan 

The County panicipates in a defined benefit plan that cover~ all full-time employee~ and limited part-time cmploycc5, 
that ir, administered by the Michigan Municipal Employee!. Retirement System. Effective April l, 2{104 all new hires are 
enrolled in the MERS Defined Contribution Plan. 

Valuation 
Date 

Decembs_r..11 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
1016 

County of Jron 
Employ~ Retirement System 

~·c-Y car lilstory. 

Actuarial Accrued 
Value of Actuarial 
Assets Liabilitv 

$24,509,272 $19,821,784 
$26,160.977 $3.2,219,603 
S.27.833,85:'i $34,902.,651 
$29.45})99 S39,714291 

( * I 

Source: Coumy of lron und MERS, * 20 l 6 information was not avail.able at report time. 

17.J 

Funded 
Ratio 
82% 
81% 
80%, 
74% 




